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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had at 

11:00 a.m.: 

EXAMINER STOGNER: This hearing w i l l come t o 

order. At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l Case Number 12,623, which i s 

the A p p l i c a t i o n of Raptor Resources, I n c . , f o r two 

unorthodox i n f i l l gas w e l l l o c a t i o n s and simultaneous 

d e d i c a t i o n , Lea County, New Mexico. 

At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, my name i s 

W i l l i a m F. Carr w i t h the Santa Fe o f f i c e of the law f i r m 

Holland and Hart, L.L.P. We represent Raptor Resources i n 

t h i s matter, and I have three witnesses. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

W i l l the witnesses please stand t o be sworn? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, a t t h i s time I would 

request t h a t t h i s case be consolidated w i t h the next two 

cases. The f o l l o w i n g two cases are A p p l i c a t i o n s of Raptor 

Resources. Again, they i n v o l v e a d d i t i o n a l development of 

the Jalmat Gas Pool. The same issues are in v o l v e d i n each 

of the cases and the general reasons supporting the 

A p p l i c a t i o n s are the same. I would request t h a t they be 

con s o l i d a t e d f o r the purpose of testimony. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s time I'm going t o c a l l 

Case Number 12,624, which i s also the A p p l i c a t i o n of Raptor 
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Resources, I n c . , f o r an unorthodox i n f i l l gas w e l l l o c a t i o n 

w i t h simultaneous d e d i c a t i o n , Lea County, New Mexico; and 

Case 12,625, which i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of Raptor Resources, 

In c . , f o r an unorthodox i n f i l l gas w e l l l o c a t i o n and 

simultaneous d e d i c a t i o n , Lea County, New Mexico. 

Other than the A p p l i c a n t , are t h e r e any other 

appearances i n any of these matters? Then Cases 12,625, 

12,624 and 12,623 w i l l be consolidated f o r purposes of 

testimony today, and i f a p p l i c a b l e a s i n g l e order can be 

issued. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Examiner, I also have a b r i e f 

opening statement. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, w i t h these 

A p p l i c a t i o n s Raptor Resources, I n c . , seeks a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o 

d r i l l f i v e a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s i n the Jalmat Gas Pool. The 

w e l l s are proposed on thr e e spacing u n i t s , and they w i l l be 

on a density of less than one w e l l per 160 acres. A l l are 

i n f i l l w e l l s . Four are at unorthodox w e l l l o c a t i o n s . 

And we also are seeking a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o 

simultaneously dedicate a l l w e l l s on the t h r e e spacing or 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t s which are the subject of these c o n s o l i d a t e d 

hearings. 

As the Examiner i s aware, f o r the past 

approximately year and a h a l f t here have been a number of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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issues concerning the proper development of the Jalmat and 

the Eumont gas p o o l . There's been l i t i g a t i o n , t h e r e have 

been i n d u s t r y meetings, and i t i s our understanding t h a t 

the basic r u l e s t h a t govern the pool are s t i l l under review 

by the agency. 

I n t h i s case, Raptor Resources w i l l present 

testimony which we b e l i e v e meets the standard set by the 

r u l e s which govern the development of the Jalmat Gas Pool. 

We also b e l i e v e our p r e s e n t a t i o n w i l l meet the 

standards announced by the D i s t r i c t Court of Santa Fe 

County i n the S t i p u l a t e d Declaratory Judgment which was 

entered on December 15th i n the year 2000, which i n f a c t 

imposed some a d d i t i o n a l requirements on operators i f they 

decided t o develop t h i s pool on a d e n s i t y of w e l l s greater 

than one w e l l per 160-acre spacing u n i t . 

The evidence we're going t o present today i s 

going t o be organized i n t h i s f a s h ion. F i r s t , we're going 

t o c a l l John Lawrence. Mr. Lawrence i s a petroleum 

engineer. He i s the person at Raptor who i s r e s p o n s i b l e 

f o r t h e i r redevelopment program of the Jalmat Gas Pool. 

We're going t o c a l l Mr. Lawrence t w i c e , w i t h your 

permission, f i r s t t o provide a general background. What 

he's going t o do i s review f o r you why Raptor became 

i n t e r e s t e d i n redeveloping c e r t a i n spacing u n i t s i n the 

Jalmat Gas Pool. They have d r i l l e d 15 w e l l s as p a r t of 
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t h i s program t o date. The density i s g r e a t e r than one w e l l 

per 160 acres. And he i s going t o review w i t h you the 

success they have achieved w i t h t h i s program. We're here 

today seeking a u t h o r i t y t o continue t h i s e f f o r t . 

I t h i n k i t ' s important t o note t h a t as we have 

gone forward w i t h t h i s e f f o r t we have attempted t o comply 

w i t h the r u l e s as we understand the r u l e s t o be. I t ' s been 

sometimes, Mr. Stogner, a s o r t of a con t i n u o u s l y moving 

t a r g e t . But when we have been i n doubt as t o what was 

re q u i r e d of the r u l e s , we have erred on the sid e , we t h i n k , 

of doing too much. And we w i l l show you e x a c t l y what we 

have done, not only t o comply w i t h Jalmat r u l e s but t o meet 

the standards announced by the D i s t r i c t Court. 

Mr. Lawrence i s responsible f o r t h i s program, 

he's going t o review the h i s t o r y of i t , he's going t o t e l l 

you how new l o c a t i o n s are selected. He's going t o t e l l you 

why i t i s we b e l i e v e there are bypassed reserves t h a t are 

a v a i l a b l e t o now be produced, produced not as a r a t e 

a c c e l e r a t i o n but, i n f a c t , as incremental p r o d u c t i o n . 

And because the Court i n i t s order sa i d t h a t we 

would show you t h a t we could economically and e f f i c i e n t l y 

produce the reserves, we're also going t o show you what our 

economic c r i t e r i a are f o r t h i s redevelopment program. 

We're then going t o c a l l Mr. Keathly. B i l l 

Keathly i s p r o v i d i n g our land testimony. He was asked t o 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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i d e n t i f y the o f f s e t owners t o each of the sub j e c t spacing 

u n i t s and t o assure t h a t n o t i c e has been provided of t h i s 

c o n solidated hearing as req u i r e d by the r u l e s of the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n and the Order of the D i s t r i c t Court. 

He w i l l e x p l a i n how we approached t h i s t ask and t o whom 

n o t i c e has been provided. 

We're then going t o move t o the p o r t i o n of the 

cou r t order t h a t says we must j u s t i f y these w e l l s t o you. 

We're going t o c a l l Dave Pearcy, a g e o l o g i s t who's going t o 

review the geology on each of the f i v e l o c a t i o n s t h a t we're 

t a l k i n g about. He's going t o show you t h a t the g e o l o g i c a l 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the r e s e r v o i r i n these p a r t i c u l a r areas 

j u s t i f y an a d d i t i o n a l w e l l , and he's going t o i d e n t i f y f o r 

you i n t e r v a l s which have not been p e r f o r a t e d or produced i n 

o f f s e t t i n g p r o p e r t i e s . 

Once we've done t h a t , we're going t o r e c a l l Mr. 

Lawrence. He's going t o show why we b e l i e v e a w e l l a t each 

of these l o c a t i o n s i s needed t o e f f i c i e n t l y and 

economically develop the reserves. He's going t o show you 

t h a t these are a d d i t i o n a l reserves, not r a t e a c c e l e r a t i o n . 

And a t the end, we submit, we w i l l have complied w i t h the 

r u l e s of the D i v i s i o n and the Order of the D i s t r i c t Court, 

and w e ' l l ask you t o enter orders approving f i v e a d d i t i o n a l 

orders i n the Jalmat Gas Pool. 

At t h i s time, w i t h your permission, we would c a l l 
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John Lawrence. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Carr. 

MR. CARR: And Mr. Stogner, there's a set of 

e x h i b i t s i n f r o n t of you c l i p p e d i n a number of small 

packets, but I t h i n k the set before you i s complete. 

JOHN J. LAWRENCE, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name f o r the record, please? 

A. John J. Lawrence. 

Q. Mr. Lawrence, where do you reside? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. Raptor Resources. 

Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h Raptor Resources? 

A. Vice president of engineering. 

Q. You are the engineer w i t h Raptor who i s 

resp o n s i b l e f o r the redevelopment program of the Jalmat gas 

reserves; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. No, I have not. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Would you summarize your educational background 

f o r Mr. Stogner? 

A. I graduated w i t h a bachelor of science degree i n 

chemical engineering from Texas A&M U n i v e r s i t y i n December 

of 1980. 

Q. And since graduation, f o r whom have you worked? 

A. I worked f o r 13 years as a petroleum engineer f o r 

C i t i e s Service O i l and Gas. Eventually i t became OXY USA, 

Inc. 

Q. And when d i d you s t a r t working f o r Raptor? 

A. A f t e r I l e f t OXY I i n i t i a t e d my own c o n s u l t i n g 

company, which e v e n t u a l l y has evolved i n t o Raptor Resources 

over the l a s t s i x years. 

Q. And since graduation have you a t a l l times worked 

as a petroleum engineer? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d by 

Raptor Resources i n each of these consolidated cases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have you made an engineering study of the 

p a r t i c u l a r spacing u n i t s which are involved w i t h these 

A p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of your 

work w i t h Mr. Stogner? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time we would tender Mr. 

Lawrence as an expert witness i n petroleum engineering. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Lawrence i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) Mr. Lawrence, would you b r i e f l y 

describe i n a general way what i t i s Raptor Resources seeks 

w i t h these A p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. We seek exceptions t o the w e l l - l o c a t i o n 

requirements provided by the s p e c i a l pool r u l e s and 

r e g u l a t i o n s f o r the Jalmat Gas Pool, f u r t h e r , pursuant t o 

the r u l e s governing the Jalmat Gas Pool i n the s t i p u l a t e d 

d e c l a r a t o r y judgment issued by the D i s t r i c t Court t h a t we 

w i l l i n d i v i d u a l l y review each A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. Are you also seeking a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o 

simultaneously dedicate new w e l l s and the e x i s t i n g w e l l s on 

each of the subject spacing u n i t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You are proposing t o go t o a w e l l d e n s i t y t h a t i s 

more than one w e l l per 160 acres; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Could you g e n e r a l l y review the purpose of your 

i n i t i a l testimony here today? 

A. B a s i c a l l y what I plan on doing today i s g i v i n g a 

h i s t o r i c a l overview of the acreage t h a t Raptor possesses i n 

the Jalmat Pool, reviewing the work of two previous 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

13 

operators and also reviewing the work t h a t we have 

conducted i n the f i e l d . 

Q. Are we also then going t o review t h e economic 

c r i t e r i a t h a t ' s employed as you go forward w i t h t h i s 

program? 

A. Yes, I w i l l . 

Q. When d i d Raptor acquire i t s i n t e r e s t s i n t h i s 

area? 

A. We purchased the acreage from Clayton Williams 

Corporation i n A p r i l of 1999. 

Q. And what had caused Raptor t o become i n t e r e s t e d 

i n redeveloping Jalmat Gas Reserves? 

A. I had done some previous engineering work i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r area and belie v e d t h a t the p r o p e r t y and acreage 

had remaining p o t e n t i a l i n both the Yates and t h e Seven 

Rivers gas for m a t i o n . 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked f o r 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as Raptor E x h i b i t Number 1. I would ask you 

t o i d e n t i f y t h i s e x h i b i t and e x p l a i n what i t shows. 

A. This p a r t i c u l a r p l a t shows the o u t l i n e s of the 

Jalmat Gas Pool. The acreage h i g h l i g h t e d i n y e l l o w i s the 

acreage t h a t i s c u r r e n t l y operated by Raptor Resources, 

In c . The no r t h e r n acreage we w i l l r e f e r t o w i l l be the 

State "A" Account 2 leases. The l a r g e r p l o t t o t h e south 

i s p r i m a r i l y the State "A" Account 1 lease. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. And i n each of these -- i n the Account 1 and i n 

the Account 2, throughout those areas, you have common 

working i n t e r e s t ownership, do you not? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , we have common working i n t e r e s t 

ownership t h a t have approved AFEs f o r the proposed work. 

Q. And then as we go i n t o t h i s p r e s e n t a t i o n we w i l l 

show a t a l a t e r time smaller maps t h a t show each of the 

sub j e c t spacing u n i t s which are inv o l v e d i n the i n d i v i d u a l 

cases; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o what has been marked 

Raptor E x h i b i t Number 2. Could you i d e n t i f y t h i s and 

review i t f o r Mr. Stogner? 

A. Mr. Stogner, t h i s i s a h i s t o r i c a l p r o d u c t i o n 

curve of the acreage t h a t Raptor operates. And a couple 

t h i n g s t h a t I would l i k e t o p o i n t out on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

p r o d u c t i o n curve. 

From the p e r i o d of the e a r l y 1970s through the 

l a t e 1980s t h e r e was very l i t t l e , i f any, a c t i v i t y on the 

s a i d acreage. I n the l a t e 1980s there was an o p e r a t i n g 

e n t i t y out of Midland, Texas, Hal Rasmussen, as w e l l as 

Clayton W i l l i a m s , t h a t took over the p r o p e r t i e s , i n i t i a t e d 

redeveloping gas w e l l s i n the Jalmat Gas Pool on d e n s i t y of 

le s s than 160-acre spacing, had s i g n i f i c a n t success. As 

you can see, they a c t u a l l y took the p r o p e r t y up t o a peak 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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p r o d u c t i o n i n excess of 12 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas a day. 

I f you look on the e s t a b l i s h e d h i s t o r i c a l 

p r o d u c t i o n d e c l i n e , the work t h a t was done by Rasmussen and 

Williams was a c t u a l incremental reserves t h a t were 

produced. As you can see w i t h the work t h a t was done i n 

the l a t e 1980s and e a r l y 1990s, the d e c l i n e curve from t h a t 

work m i r r o r s e x a c t l y the h i s t o r i c a l d e c l i n e from the 1970s, 

which t o me i s a very, very s t r o n g i n d i c a t i o n t h a t these 

are indeed incremental gas reserves t h a t are being produced 

by t a k i n g w e l l s down on t i g h t e r d e n s i t y . 

I n c o n j u n c t i o n w i t h t h a t you can see t h a t i n l a t e 

1999 and 2000, when Raptor became the operator and we 

i n i t i a t e d k i n d of a c o n t i n u a t i o n of the development t h a t 

Rasmussen and Williams had done previous, we have n o t i c e d 

and had a s i g n i f i c a n t increase i n gas p r o d u c t i o n from our 

e f f o r t s , and again f e e l t h a t those reserves are incremental 

reserves t h a t are being produced from the p r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. To date, how many w e l l s have you a c t u a l l y d r i l l e d 

or recompleted? 

A. We have a c t u a l l y recompleted, plugged back or 

d r i l l e d approximately 30 w e l l s i n the Jalmat Gas Pool i n 

the l i t t l e over two years t h a t we've owned the p r o p e r t y . 

Q. And how many w e l l s were i n v o l v e d i n the 

Rasmussen-Williams e f f o r t ? 

A. There were 56 w e l l s t h a t have been recompleted i n 
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t h e i r e f f o r t s over a two-year time span. B a s i c a l l y , when 

Clayton Williams took over operations of the p r o p e r t y i n 

1991, he discontinued any a d d i t i o n a l development a t t h a t 

time, and t h e r e was no work done on the acreage f o r 

approximately ten years u n t i l we took over o p e r a t i o n s . 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked Raptor E x h i b i t 

Number 3, the bar graph. Would you e x p l a i n what t h i s 

shows? 

A. This i s a h i s t o r i c a l summary of the work t h a t had 

been done by both Rasmussen and Clayton W i l l i a m s . 

The bottom l i n e on the bar graph i s the estimated 

u l t i m a t e recovery of the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s i n m i l l i o n cubic 

f e e t of gas. 

On the l e f t - h a n d column, i t ' s the number of w e l l s 

t h a t a c t u a l l y w i l l f a l l i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r category. 

For example, when you look on the bottom side of 

the graph under the number "3", t h a t means t h a t t h e r e are 

12 w e l l s t h a t w i l l produce approximately 300 m i l l i o n cubic 

f e e t of gas u l t i m a t e l y from the work t h a t was done back i n 

t h e l a t e 1980s or e a r l y 1990s. 

And as you can see, there's d i s t r i b u t i o n ranging 

from on the low side of 100 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t t o f o u r 

w e l l s t h a t a c t u a l l y w i l l produce i n excess of a BCF of gas. 

Q. And t h i s bar graph represents a l l of t h e 50-plus 

w e l l s i n v o l v e d i n the Rasmussen-Williams redevelopment 
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program? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What success r a t e d i d they achieve w i t h these 

w e l l s ? 

A. Based on our economic c r i t e r i a , they had a 

g r e a t e r than 90-percent success r a t e from t h e i r work. And 

I t h i n k when you look a t t h i s and then you look a t the 

incremental wedge of produ c t i o n from the previous e x h i b i t , 

you can see t h a t t h a t i s , i n f a c t , incremental p r o d u c t i o n 

recovered from t h e i r e f f o r t s . 

Q. Let's go t o what's been marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n 

as our E x h i b i t Number 4. Would you i d e n t i f y t h i s and 

e x p l a i n i t ? 

A. This p a r t i c u l a r e x h i b i t contains the 15 most 

re c e n t recompletions t h a t Raptor Resources has done on t h e 

acreage. The 15 w e l l s t h a t we have reworked have had an 

average i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l of 377 MCF of gas per day. And 

i t ' s j u s t k i n d of a h i s t o r i c a l — i t shows what zones and 

i n t e r v a l s and the l o c a t i o n of the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s and the 

i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l s from those p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I ' d l i k e you t o take out E x h i b i t s 5 

and 6. And using these e x h i b i t s and the i n f o r m a t i o n on 

E x h i b i t 5 f o r the State "A" A/C 1 Number 127 w e l l , u s i n g 

t h i s m a t e r i a l , I would l i k e you t o e x p l a i n t o t h e Examiner 

how you go about — what c r i t e r i a Raptor uses i n s e l e c t i n g 
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new l o c a t i o n s i n the Jalmat Gas Pool? 

A. Mr. Stogner, what we t y p i c a l l y do on each one of 

these p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n s i s t h a t we w i l l go and look a t 

the e i g h t o f f s e t w e l l s t o the p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n i n 

question. We'll go back i n and research when the w e l l was 

d r i l l e d and completed, what i n t e r v a l s the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l 

was completed i n , what size of s t i m u l a t i o n was a c t u a l l y 

done on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , and then a l s o we have i n the 

t a b l e a cumulative gas pro d u c t i o n from the o f f s e t w e l l s t o 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n . 

We use t h i s i n co n j u n c t i o n w i t h a g e o l o g i c a l 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i n t r y i n g t o determine net f e e t of pay f o r a 

p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n as our c r i t e r i a f o r a d d i t i o n a l 

development. 

Q. What does E x h i b i t Number 5 show us? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 5 are the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s t h a t 

o f f s e t w e l l l o c a t i o n Number 127. 127 — and t h i s i s i n the 

State "A" Account 1 lease, which was a good w e l l , not one 

of our best w e l l s , t h a t was o r i g i n a l l y completed w i t h an IP 

of 527 MCF of gas per day. 

What we d i d when we were e v a l u a t i n g t h i s l o c a t i o n 

was again go t o the o f f s e t s — n o r t h , south, east, west and 

the diagonal o f f s e t s — and look a t the p r i o r h i s t o r i e s of 

those w e l l s , and then we would look a t c r o s s - s e c t i o n s t h a t 

were created t o evaluate the net f e e t of pay t h i c k n e s s i n 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

19 

t h e r e and determined i f i t was a v i a b l e candidate t o come 

back i n and e i t h e r r e d r i l l or p o t e n t i a l l y p l u g back i n the 

given l o c a t i o n . 

Q. And the treatment employed a t the t ime the w e l l 

was i n i t i a l l y d r i l l e d and completed was a f a c t o r as w e l l , 

was i t not? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . That i s c o r r e c t , yes. When you 

look on t h i s t a b l e , t h e r e are a number of w e l l s t h a t were 

completed back i n the e a r l y 1950s t h a t e i t h e r had u t i l i z e d 

n a t u r a l - t y p e completions or very small f r a c s , and they d i d 

not open up a l l the p o t e n t i a l pay i n t e r v a l s t h a t we have 

i d e n t i f i e d through our e f f o r t s out t h e r e . 

As you can see, a number of the w e l l s i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r t a b l e were j u s t completed i n the Yates, and very 

few of them had a c t u a l l y any completions i n t h e Seven 

Rivers f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. We're t a l k i n g about three spacing u n i t s , one 480 

acres i n s i z e , one 520 and one standard 640-acre u n i t . 

With these u n i t s under the pool r u l e s , the w e l l s should be 

back 990 f e e t from the outer boundary. 

I s the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you've shown us on the 

127 the k i n d of a n a l y s i s t h a t you made t h a t has r e s u l t e d i n 

fo u r of these f i v e w e l l s being c l o s e r than 990 f e e t t o the 

outer boundary of the spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . And the basis f o r t h a t , a number of 
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these w e l l s — i n f a c t , almost a l l of them, were o r i g i n a l l y 

d r i l l e d t o the base of the Queen fo r m a t i o n and were 

o r i g i n a l l y c l a s s i f i e d as o i l w e l l s , which the setbacks were 

660 f e e t o f f the lease l i n e s . 

And so i n order t o maintain 1320-feet w e l l 

spacing we have i n d i c a t e d t h a t we'd l i k e t o have the 

l o c a t i o n 660 f e e t o f f the corresponding lease l i n e s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Now I'm going t o stop you 

r i g h t t h e r e , Mr. Carr. 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Go back and ask t h a t question 

again, because I want t o make sure, I don't want anybody t o 

mislead — 

MR. CARR: Uh-huh. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — be misled i n any way about 

what the c u r r e n t r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s say. And I heard 

something t h e r e t h a t was not q u i t e t r u e — 

MR. CARR: A l l r i g h t — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: -- and I ' l l g i v e you a chance 

t o — 

MR. CARR: — my understanding of the r u l e s i s 

t h a t the l a r g e r the spacing u n i t , the g r e a t e r t h e setback, 

t h a t a l l of these f a l l w i t h i n a category where a w e l l 

should be 990 from the outer boundary, because the smallest 

one i s 480 acres. I f t h a t ' s wrong, t h a t ' s my 
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misunderstanding. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, l e t ' s go back and make 

sure. Who i s your expert on the r u l e s ? 

MR. CARR: I'm the expert, u n f o r t u n a t e l y , on the 

r u l e s . I looked a t the r u l e s — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You mean Raptor doesn't have 

anybody here t h a t is? 

MR. CARR: Well, Raptor has r e l i e d on me t o 

i n t e r p r e t the r u l e s f o r them. That's what I was h i r e d t o 

do. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: But Raptor's made a bunch of 

A p p l i c a t i o n s over the years. 

MR. CARR: Correct. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You're t e l l i n g me t h a t you 

were t h e only one i n those, t h a t — 

MR. CARR: No — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — you were not in v o l v e d i n — 

MR. CARR: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — they went along w i t h o u t 

having an expert t h a t knows what t h e r u l e s — 

MR. CARR: No, they have used — I n t e r n a l l y , they 

have i n t e r p r e t e d the r u l e s . But as t o t h i s case, Mr. 

Stogner — because we have had t r o u b l e , you know t h a t — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And t h a t ' s why I want t o make 

sure — 
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MR. CARR: — and I have stepped i n , and 

yesterday I checked the r u l e s , and the t a b l e t h a t I saw i n 

R-8170 t o l d me t h a t we needed t o be back 990 from the outer 

boundary. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, w e l l , l e t ' s make sure. 

MR. CARR: Okay. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Up t o 600 acres, 990-990. But 

how about a standard 64 0? What's the setback? "A gas w e l l 

i n the Jalmat Gas Pool t o which 640 acres i s dedicated 

s h a l l be loc a t e d no clo s e r than 1650 f e e t t o the outer 

boundary of the s e c t i o n . " 

MR. CARR: A l l r i g h t , then I'm i n e r r o r on t h a t , 

and t h a t i s my e r r o r . 

Nonetheless, each of these, Mr. Stogner, i s 

unorthodox toward the outer boundary. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. I wanted t o make sure 

t h a t ~ 

MR. CARR: Correct. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — we're c l e a r — 

MR. CARR: Right. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — not only f o r me and you a t 

t h i s time — 

MR. CARR: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — and the people here a t the 

hearing but anybody else t h a t reads the t r a n s c r i p t — 
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MR. CARR: Correct. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: or anybody t h a t — 

MR. CARR: Well — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I make the recommendation 

t o , we want t o make sure t h a t — 

MR. CARR: No, you're r i g h t , and I grabbed the 

Byram book and looked a t t h a t t a b l e , and I knew we were 

over what was shown i n the t a b l e , and i t s a i d 990-990, and 

t h a t ' s what I worked w i t h , but — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I'm r e a l s u r p r i s e d one of your 

witnesses d i d n ' t jump up and c o r r e c t me today. So w e ' l l 

j u s t keep t h a t under — 

proceed, s i r ? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Yes. 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) Mr. Lawrence, the D i s t r i c t Court 

i n i t s S t i p u l a t e d Declaratory Judgment d i r e c t e d operators 

t o show t h a t proposed w e l l s are necessary t o e f f i c i e n t l y 

and economically d r a i n p r o r a t i o n u n i t s . 

Could you r e f e r t o Raptor E x h i b i t Number 7 and 

gi v e an overview of the economic c o n s i d e r a t i o n s i n v o l v e d i n 

your determinations t o d r i l l one of these w e l l s ? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 7 i s a t a b l e t h a t b a s i c a l l y 

MR. CARR: A l l r i g h t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — under c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

MR. CARR: A l l r i g h t . Are you ready f o r us t o 
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i d e n t i f i e s the cost f o r Raptor t o d r i l l a new w e l l i n the 

Jalmat Gas Pool. That c a p i t a l expenditure i s approximately 

$315,000. Based on the previous e x h i b i t t h a t showed an 

average i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l of 377 MCF per day, t h a t would 

give us an estimated u l t i m a t e recovery of approximately 590 

m i l l i o n cubic f e e t from t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l l o c a t i o n . 

U t i l i z i n g a $5 MCF gas p r i c e , which i s r i g h t now 

a l i t t l e below a c t u a l market c o n d i t i o n s , i t takes 

approximately 73 m i l l i o n f e e t of gas t o be produced from 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l t o pay out the c a p i t a l expenditure. 

Running a s e n s i t i v i t y case, u t i l i z i n g a $2.50-

per-MCF p r i c e , i t takes approximately 155 m i l l i o n cubic 

f e e t of gas t o be able t o pay out your c a p i t a l expenditure 

f o r the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l i n question. 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , can the w e l l s t h a t you're 

proposing be economically d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes, they can. 

Q. Could you e x p l a i n t o us — To what do you 

a t t r i b u t e your a b i l i t y t o access and produce a d d i t i o n a l 

reserves under these t r a c t s i n the Jalmat Gas Pool? 

A. Based on our e v a l u a t i o n , we f e e l t h a t some of the 

ol d e r w e l l s were inadequately t r e a t e d , some used n a t u r a l 

completions, some used small f r a c jobs, not a l l t h e zones 

were opened up t o be able t o e f f e c t i v e l y develop t h e e n t i r e 

r e s e r v o i r . Some of the w e l l s a c t u a l l y were completed open 
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hole i n the procedure they used a t t h a t p o i n t i n time t o be 

able t o shoot n i t r o and open up the r e s e r v o i r . I don't 

t h i n k i t was e f f e c t i v e i n opening up the e n t i r e pay 

i n t e r v a l . 

Previous operators i n t h i s f i e l d , when they were 

plugging back from the Queen formation t o go i n t o the Yates 

Pool, t y p i c a l l y a l o t or a m a j o r i t y of the Seven Rivers gas 

sands t h a t are i n existence i n here. 

And based on those reasons, t h a t ' s why we f e e l 

t h ere's a d d i t i o n a l reserves t o recover, p l u s we have found 

t h a t t h e r e a number of sand members t h a t are l e n t i c u l a r i n 

nature, and so they are not continuous from w e l l t o w e l l , 

even on t i g h t e r d e n s i t y . 

Q. What conclusions g e n e r a l l y has Raptor reached 

from i t s study of the Jalmat Gas Pool? 

A. We f e e l t h e r e are s u b s t a n t i a l reserves t o be 

recovered from these p a r t i c u l a r e f f o r t s , based on t h e work 

t h a t Rasmussen-Williams has done, the work t h a t we have 

done, and a look a t the h i s t o r i c a l p r o d u c t i o n curves o f f 

the p r o p e r t y , t h a t these are indeed incremental reserves 

recovered from our e f f o r t s . 

Q. What would have been the d a i l y p r o d u c t i o n r a t e 

from the acreage t h a t you redeveloped i n your 2 000 

redevelopment program? 

A. Had we not done anything on the p r o p e r t y a f t e r 
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purchasing from Clayton Williams, the p r o p e r t y would be 

producing approximately 3 t o 3.1 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas 

a day. Current d a i l y production i s i n excess of 7 m i l l i o n 

cubic f e e t a day from our work e f f o r t s . 

Q. W i l l Raptor now c a l l witnesses t h a t w i l l address 

each of the t h r e e spacing u n i t s which are the su b j e c t s of 

these A p p l i c a t i o n s and demonstrate t h a t the proposed 

a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s are necessary t o produce recoverable 

reserves under these spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t s ? 

A. Yes, we w i l l . 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 prepared by you or 

compiled under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time we'd move the admission 

i n t o evidence, Mr. Stogner, of Raptor E x h i b i t s 1 through 7. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: And I pass the witness f o r cross-

examination. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. On your E x h i b i t Number 4, now, t h i s shows — 

These are a l l new completions or — okay, new d r i l l s or new 

recompletions. 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. How many are actual new d r i l l s ? 

A. One, two, three, four of the locations are new 

d r i l l s . 

Q. Okay, which ones are those? 

A. That would be the Numbers 127, 128 and 129 i n 

Account 1, and then the State A/C 2 Well Number 75. 

Q. 127, 128, 129, Number 75, and what was the other 

one 

A. That was i t , the State A/C — 

Q. Just those four? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the other recompletions were what kind of 

wells? 

A. Typically they were wells that e i t h e r had been 

temporarily abandoned or were uneconomical, very marginal, 

Langlie-Mattix Queen wells that we would plug back and set 

a r e t r i e v a b l e bridge plug and come back up the hole and 

complete i n the gas i n t e r v a l . 

Q. Did these wells t y p i c a l l y — the production 

dropoff or the production rates, did you see a t y p i c a l 

dropoff t h a t kind of mirrors what you t r i e d t o show i n 

Exhibit Number 2, or did they have v i r g i n c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s 

out there? 

A. We've seen a tremendous v a r i a t i o n with how they 

responded i n the v a r i a t i o n i n pressures. 
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Q. How about some of the higher producers, i n 

p a r t i c u l a r the Number 25 and Number 34, which — Those 

would be c l a s s i f i e d as nonmarginal, would they not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, what d i d those show? 

A. B a s i c a l l y we had what we f e l t were almost v i r g i n -

type pressures t h a t we were re c o v e r i n g the gas from. I 

t h i n k another i n d i c a t i o n of the success we've had i n here 

i s t h a t the IPs t h a t we have had on our w e l l s have been 

equal t o or b e t t e r than the r e s u l t s from previous e f f o r t s . 

Q. Okay, when I look a t E x h i b i t Number 5, you show 

t h i s f o r the Number 127, which also appears i n E x h i b i t 

Number 4. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Now, 127 i n i t i a l l y came on i n October of 

2 000; i s t h a t co r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And when you say "cu r r e n t r a t e " , t h i s i s c u r r e n t 

r a t e as of — ? 

A. As of i n the l a s t 30 days. 

Q. T h i r t y days, okay. 

When one reviews E x h i b i t Number 5, one t h i n g t h a t 

seems t o pop out the most i s the pay i n t e r v a l . Now, does 

t h a t a l s o r e f l e c t the p e r f o r a t i o n s ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . That i s the a c t u a l i n t e r v a l 
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t h a t has been p e r f o r a t e d . I t ' s not a top-to-bottom pay 

th i c k n e s s , t h a t ' s the a c t u a l p r o d u c t i v e i n t e r v a l i n t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . 

Q. What's the t y p i c a l — Well, f o r t h i s Well Number 

127, how many p e r f o r a t i o n s per f o o t , or do you go i n th e r e 

and a c t u a l l y get k i n d of s c i e n t i f i c and -- 10 f e e t here, 30 

f e e t here? Because you've got a — I don't know, what? A 

550-foot i n t e r v a l ? 

A. Right. T y p i c a l l y we have no more than 20 t o 25 

p e r f o r a t i o n s on a given w e l l b o r e . 

Q. So you're very p a r t i c u l a r ? 

A. Very s e l e c t i v e . 

Q. Okay, s e l e c t i v e f i r s t . When I look a t your 1952 

and 1953 completion dates, can one t y p i c a l l y look a t those 

and say t h a t was an open-hole completion, or d i d those have 

p e r f s also? 

A. I t can be a combination of — Sometimes they were 

open-hole completed, sometimes th e r e were p e r f o r a t e d 

i n t e r v a l s , and we have a combination now. 

Q. Okay. What are some of your o l d e r wells? Do 

they go back t o the 1940s? 

A. Yes, sure do. 

Q. Any back t o the 193 0s? 

A. Not t h a t I'm f a m i l i a r w i t h . I know we have a 

number t h a t are back t o the 1940s but I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h 
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any f i r s t h a n d t h a t date t o the 1930s. 

Q. Okay. What time p e r i o d does the open holes tend 

t o go away, or t h a t type of completion? 

A. Oh, I don't t h i n k any open-hole completions have 

probably been done since the e a r l y 1960s. 

Q. Okay. When I look a t your E x h i b i t Number 1, now, 

the yellow-shaded markings i s — ? 

A. That's the Raptor acreage. 

Q. I s Raptor acreage. Now, the areas t h a t we're 

t a l k i n g about here today — Okay, w e l l , l e t me go back. 

Referencing E x h i b i t Number 1, i n l o o k i n g a t your y e l l o w 

markings here i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r pool, you have e s s e n t i a l l y 

two areas t h a t look l i k e they're c o r r e l a t i v e t o each o t h e r . 

Are a l l of these w i t h i n t h a t lower b i g area t h a t Raptor 

operates? And t h a t looks l i k e i t ' s -- I can't see t h e — 

Township 2 3 South, 3 6 East, or do you have some up above i n 

the township t o the n o r t h about — 

A. No, t h i s i s a l l the acreage t h a t we operate. 

Q. Okay. But where are the cases t h a t we're t a l k i n g 

about today? 

A. Two of the p a r t i c u l a r cases are i n Section 11, 

which would be the s e c t i o n up t o the n o r t h t h a t stands out 

by i t s e l f . And then t h e r e are three l o c a t i o n s t h a t are 

down on the State "A" Account 1 lease t o the south. Two of 

them are k i n d of on the west c e n t r a l p o r t i o n of the area i n 
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y e l l o w , one i s back t o the southeast p o r t i o n of t h e 

acreage. 

We'll have i n d i v i d u a l p l a t s t h a t w e ' l l show l a t e r 

t h a t k i n d of i d e n t i f y those areas. 

Q. Okay. R e f e r r i n g now t o E x h i b i t Number 2, a 

couple of t h i n g s stand out t o me on t h i s . Maybe you can 

c l a r i f y t h i s t o me. 

When I look a t the e a r l y 1960s, from 1960 t o 

about 1970, produc t i o n looks — Gas p r o d u c t i o n looks 

r e l a t i v e l y c o n s i s t e n t , almost a s t r a i g h t l i n e . What was 

going on t h e r e , and what do you f e e l t h a t represents? 

A. Well, t h e r e was some ongoing work as w e l l s , you 

know, would become uneconomical f o r lower horizons t h a t 

they would plug back i n and complete i n the gas, depending 

on what market c o n d i t i o n s e x i s t e d a t t h a t p o i n t i n time. 

There were a s i g n i f i c a n t number of conversions done back i n 

the 1970s when you see t h a t spike, p r o d u c t i o n increases 

t h e r e s t a r t i n g approximately the year 1970. 

Q. There seems t o be a t r e n d each year, and t h a t 

doesn't make much sense because whenever I see a year 

represented, does t h a t u s u a l l y correspond w i t h January? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h a t would be the s t a r t of t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r year. 

Q. And the pr o d u c t i o n i s down. I thought t h e 

p r o d u c t i o n would be up du r i n g the heavy use area or times 
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i n January, as opposed t o summertime. 

Where d i d t h i s market go f o r t h i s gas? 

A. I t c u r r e n t l y goes i n t o the Sid Richardson system 

r i g h t now. 

Q. Okay, where d i d i t go a t the time, then, the 

1960s, t h a t ' s represented here? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r h i s t o r i c a l l y what they d i d w i t h 

i t a t t h a t p o i n t , no. 

Q. When d i d you s t a r t working out here, then? 

A. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I've worked o f f and on i n t h i s area f o r 20 years. 

I had several assignments w i t h C i t i e s Service and OXY 

working t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area, and then I've worked t h i s 

area p r e t t y e x t e n s i v e l y f o r about the l a s t t h r e e or f o u r 

years. 

Q. Okay, so you're more f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e area from 

1980 on? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, the b i g increase t h a t occurred i n 19- — 

w e l l , i t looks l i k e from 1990 t o 1991 or even before then, 

t h a t was not Raptor, t h a t was Rasmussen? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . He i n i t i a t e d h i s development 

beginning i n 1989, and b a s i c a l l y a l l the work was done over 

an approximate three-year time frame, and then a f t e r 1991 
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a l l work was discontinued a t t h a t time and t h e r e was a 

change of operator t o Clayton Williams. 

Q. Okay. Now, what k i n d of work was being done? 

Was t h a t new d r i l l , recompletion? 

A. I t was a combination. The m a j o r i t y of the work 

were plugback/recompletions, but there were i n f i l l w e l l s 

t h a t were d r i l l e d . T y p i c a l i n t h i s area, w e l l s t h a t were 

d r i l l e d back i n the 1940s, 1950s, th e r e have been w e l l s 

t h a t have been plugged and abandoned, and some of those 

l o c a t i o n s have been r e d r i l l e d . 

Q. And there hasn't been any problem s e l l i n g the gas 

t h a t i s produced out of these areas? 

A. Not a t a l l . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I n f a c t , there's tremendous demand f o r i t r i g h t 

now. 

Q. Okay, how about f i v e years ago? 

A. I don't t h i n k there's been any c u r t a i l m e n t - t y p e 

issues. They've been able t o s e l l a l l t h e gas t h a t I'm 

aware of since the l a t e 1980s. There have been no problems 

w i t h s h u t t i n g i n any of the gas a t a l l ; i t ' s a l l been 

marketed. 

Q. So f a r as the p i p e l i n e takes, t h e r e ' s not a 

problem of i t not being able t o take or t h e compression or 

c u t t i n g back — 
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A. No, there's no — And i n f a c t , a c t u a l l y the 

ga t h e r i n g system i s capable of handling 20 m i l l i o n cubic 

f e e t of per day, and we're producing i n excess of 7, so 

there's p l e n t y of a v a i l a b i l i t y . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, I have no other 

questions of Mr. Lawrence a t t h i s time. But you're going 

t o r e c a l l him? 

MR. CARR: I'm going t o r e c a l l Mr. Lawrence a t a 

l a t e r time t o present a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n of a more 

s p e c i f i c nature. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time, Mr. Stogner, we c a l l 

B i l l Keathly t o the stand. 

BILL R. KEATHLY. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name f o r the re c o r d , please? 

A. B i l l R. Keathly. 

Q. Mr. Keathly, where do you reside? 

A. I n Midland, Texas. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. I'm self-employed. 

Q. And what i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h Raptor 
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Resources, Inc.? 

A. I was employed by Raptor as a co n s u l t a n t t o 

i d e n t i f y t h e ownership i n a l l of the 640-acre sections 

o f f s e t t i n g the p r o r a t i o n u n i t s covered by t h i s area. 

Q. You've also done a d d i t i o n a l work f o r Raptor i n 

the past few months, have you not — 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. — past year? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n ? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Could you summarize your educational background? 

A. I have a BA i n accounting from Oklahoma State 

U n i v e r s i t y . 

Q. And when was your degree received? 

A. January of 1962. 

Q. And f o l l o w i n g graduation, f o r whom have you 

worked? 

A. I worked 37 years w i t h Conoco, p r i m a r i l y i n the 

accounting, and i n the l a t t e r years d u r i n g the completion 

r e g u l a t o r y t h a t was necessary a f t e r w e l l s were p e r m i t t e d . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d i n 

each of these cases on behalf of Raptor Resources, Inc? 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the s t a t u s of the 

ownership of the lands and the areas which are the s u b j e c t 

of these App l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , Mr. Keathly, l e t ' s go f i r s t t o the 

A p p l i c a t i o n f o r the State "A" A/C 1, Wells Number 130 and 

131. Would you e x p l a i n t o the Examiner i n t h i s case, Case 

12,623, what i t i s t h a t Raptor seeks? 

A. We seek the a d d i t i o n of two unorthodox i n f i l l gas 

w e l l s t o the e x i s t i n g orders covering the nonstandard 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t and the simultaneous d e d i c a t i o n of a l l t h e 

Jalmat production i n t h i s 520-acre nonstandard u n i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , what i s Raptor E x h i b i t Number 8? 

A. Number 8? Oh, E x h i b i t Number 8 i s a copy of the 

order of the D i v i s i o n f o r Hal Rasmussen, Case 9775, Order 

Number R-907 3. 

Q. And i s t h i s the order — and t h e r e are attached 

amendments t o t h a t order, but i s t h i s the order t h a t 

a c t u a l l y approved the 520-acre nonstandard spacing and 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t which i s the subject of today's hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i s t h a t approved by Paragraph 8 of E x h i b i t A 

t o t h i s order? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked as Raptor 
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E x h i b i t Number 9. Would you i d e n t i f y t h i s , please? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 9 i s the C-102 p l a t f o r t h e 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t t h a t i s i n question. 

Q. And t h i s i s a c t u a l l y the p l a t t h a t was f i l e d f o r 

the Well Number 130; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the Well 130 i s a c t u a l l y i n the southeast 

southeast of Section 9? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h i s spacing u n i t a c t u a l l y crosses two 

sec t i o n s . The southeast southeast of Section 9 i s a c t u a l l y 

what? I f t h i s were a f u l l s e c t i o n i t would be t h e 

southeast of the southwest; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i t ' s i n d i c a t e d 13 0. 

The other w e l l i s the 131; i t ' s i n the 4 0 acres 

n o r t h of there? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And each of the w e l l s i n the spacing u n i t , 

i n c l u d i n g t he proposed new w e l l s , are i d e n t i f i e d on t h i s ; 

i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s Mr. Lawrence going t o present a t a b l e which 

shows the s t a t u s and the producing c a p a b i l i t i e s o f each of 

the w e l l s on t h i s spacing and p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 
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A. To the best of my knowledge, yes. 

Q. The w e l l s t h a t are shown here, the A p p l i c a t i o n 

contained a d e s c r i p t i o n of each i n c l u d i n g i t s API number 

and the producing s t a t u s of the w e l l , d i d i t not? 

A. Yes, except f o r the Well Number 100, which has 

been plugged. 

Q. And what was missing on t h a t ? 

A. The API number, and we located t h a t a t the OCD 

o f f i c e yesterday. 

Q. And what i s t h a t number? 

A. That number i s 30-025-09279. 

Q. Now w i t h t h a t map, l e t ' s go t o t h e next e x h i b i t , 

E x h i b i t Number 10, and I ' d ask you t o e x p l a i n what E x h i b i t 

10 i s and... 

A. E x h i b i t 10 i s the o f f s e t operator p l a t showing 

a l l of the o f f s e t s i n each of the 640 acres t h a t o f f s e t the 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t i n 9 and 10. The p r o r a t i o n u n i t i s o u t l i n e d 

i n red and i s not colored i n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f we look a t the e x h i b i t , i t ' s c o l o r 

coded — 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. — was every operator on t h i s p l a t n o t i f i e d of 

t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Were they provided a copy of the A p p l i c a t i o n ? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Now, i f we look at the Raptor acreage t h a t i s 

shaded i n s o r t of a beige or brown, the spacing u n i t i s 

o f f s e t a l l the way around by Raptor-operated p r o p e r t y ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s the working i n t e r e s t i d e n t i c a l i n t h e t r a c t s 

t h a t o f f s e t t h i s property t h a t i s operated by Raptor w i t h 

the working i n t e r e s t w i t h i n the spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n the east h a l f of 17 t h e r e i s a Raptor 

Resources t r a c t . I s there any a d d i t i o n a l working i n t e r e s t 

owner i n t h a t t r a c t t h a t doesn't own i n t e r e s t i n the other 

p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. Yes, Hal Rasmussen owns a f i v e - p e r c e n t i n t e r e s t 

i n t h a t t r a c t , and he was n o t i f i e d . 

Q. I n d e c i d i n g i n what area n o t i c e would be 

provided, how d i d you go about t h a t ? 

A. I used a basis of doing every operator i n the 

e n t i r e 64 0s t h a t surrounded the area. 

Q. So i f t h e r e was a 64 0 t h a t was i n c l u d e d i n the 

spacing u n i t , you t r e a t e d t h a t as i f t h a t whole s e c t i o n 

were included? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then you d i d a l l the 64 0-acre spacing u n i t s 
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a l l the way around? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t Number 11. I s t h i s an 

a f f i d a v i t t h a t confirms t h a t n o t i c e has been provided t o 

each of these owners i n accordance w i t h the r u l e s of the 

OCD? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And we have attached t o t h a t a f f i d a v i t t he n o t i c e 

l e t t e r , and behind t h a t E x h i b i t A, a l i s t of t h e 

i n d i v i d u a l s t o whom n o t i c e was provided? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then behind t h a t we have r e t u r n r e c e i p t s ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I f we look a t the r e t u r n r e c e i p t s , t h e r e i s no 

r e t u r n r e c e i p t from Doyle Hartman; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Have you checked the address t h a t was used, t o 

co n f i r m t h a t t h a t , i n f a c t , i s the address t o which 

c e r t i f i e d m a i l has been sent and received i n the past? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, we also c a l l e d Mr. 

Condon, a t t o r n e y f o r Mr. Hartman, t o advise him t h a t t h e 

n o t i c e l e t t e r had been mailed. We don't know why we have 

not received the r e c e i p t back from Mr. Hartman. 
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Q. (By Mr. Carr) Now, Mr. Keathly, l e t ' s go t o the 

next group of e x h i b i t s t h a t are c l i p p e d t o g e t h e r . These 

are f o r Case 12,624, and they i n v o l v e the Well Number 13 3; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what i s E x h i b i t 12? 

A. E x h i b i t 12 i s again the p l a t showing the 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. I t shows a l l the w e l l s — 

A. A l l the w e l l s . 

Q. — i n c l u d i n g any w e l l t h a t ' s been plugged and 

abandoned i n the Jalmat? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And the w e l l which i s the su b j e c t o f t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n i s the w e l l i n the northwest of t h e northwest? 

A. That's t r u e . 

Q. What i s the next e x h i b i t , E x h i b i t 13? 

A. E x h i b i t 13 i s the o f f s e t operators p l a t , which 

shows the Raptor p r o r a t i o n u n i t i n w h i t e , o u t l i n e d i n red. 

Q. Have a l l the i n t e r e s t owners i d e n t i f i e d on t h i s 

e x h i b i t been n o t i f i e d of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they have. 

Q. And i s the working i n t e r e s t i n t h e Raptor t r a c t s 

which o f f s e t the subject spacing u n i t i d e n t i c a l t o t h a t 

w i t h i n the spacing u n i t ? 
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A. Yes, s i r , that i s correct. 

Q. And i s Exhibit Number 14 an a f f i d a v i t confirming 

t h a t notice of t h i s hearing has been provided i n accordance 

with the rules of the O i l Conservation Division? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And again, the only person f o r whom we do not 

have a return receipt i s Mr. Hartman; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , Mr. Keathly, l e t ' s go now t o the next 

group of ex h i b i t s . These are the exhibits f o r Case 12,625 

and involve the Wells 79 and 80. Would you i d e n t i f y 

Exhibit Number 15? 

A. Number 15 i s again the C-102 p l a t comprising the 

640-acre proration u n i t , showing a l l wells t h a t are i n that 

proration u n i t . 

Q. And the subject wells are i d e n t i f i e d on t h i s 

exhibit? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. What i s Exhibit 16? 

A. 16 i s again the o f f s e t operator p l a t showing the 

Raptor acreage i n white, outlined i n red. 

Q. And have a l l the int e r e s t owners i d e n t i f i e d on 

t h i s property been n o t i f i e d of t h i s Application? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i s the working i n t e r e s t i n any o f f s e t t i n g — 
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I s t h e r e any o f f s e t t i n g Raptor — 

A. No, s i r , there i s not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s E x h i b i t Number 17 an a f f i d a v i t 

c o n f i r m i n g t h a t n o t i c e of the A p p l i c a t i o n has been provided 

t o each of these owners i n accordance w i t h t h e r u l e s of the 

Di v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Mr. Keathly, w i l l Raptor c a l l g e o l o g i c a l and 

engineering witnesses t o e x p l a i n the reasons behind the 

proposal t o d r i l l w e l l s a t each of these l o c a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 8 through 17 e i t h e r prepared by you 

or compiled a t your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Have you reviewed them and can you t e s t i f y as t o 

t h e i r accuracy? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n your op i n i o n , have you provided n o t i c e as 

re q u i r e d by the Rules of the D i v i s i o n and the Order dated 

December 15th, 2000, of the D i s t r i c t Court of Santa Fe 

County? 

A. Yes, as best I understand i t . 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, a t t h i s time we move the 

admission of Raptor E x h i b i t s 8 through 17. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 8 through 17 w i l l be 
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admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my d i r e c t 

examination of Mr. Keathly. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Mr. Keathly, whenever you were pr e p a r i n g your 

E x h i b i t s 14 and 16 and 10 — these are the ones t h a t show 

the o f f s e t operators and are done up i n c o l o r — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — how d i d you determine who the operator was? 

What k i n d of search d i d you do? 

A. I searched the f i l e s i n Hobbs, I f u r t h e r 

researched the o n l i n e system w i t h i n the ONGARD system and 

v e r i f i e d who the operators were and where the w e l l s were 

l o c a t e d . 

Q. Which wells? 

A. Whichever ones were — I searched p r i m a r i l y f o r 

the Jalmat w e l l s . 

Q. Okay. Now, the w e l l s shown on these maps, does 

t h a t n e c e s s a r i l y i n d i c a t e Jalmat p r o d u c t i o n , or does t h i s 

show a l l w e l l s w i t h i n — 

A. I t shows a l l w e l l s w i t h i n the s e c t i o n — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — whether they're Jalmat or not. 

Q. And i f you found an operator of a Jalmat w e l l , 
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how d i d you determine how much acreage t o shade? 

A. I shaded the acreage t h a t was owned by the 

operator i n t h a t area, whether they be Jalmat or not. 

Q. So you d i d i t by lease? 

A. Yes, s i r . I went over t o Hobbs and went through 

t h e i r w e l l f i l e s e c t i o n by s e c t i o n . 

Q. But you looked a t the lease and not n e c e s s a r i l y 

t h e dedicated acreage; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t r i e d t o look a t dedicated acreage a l s o , t o 

make sure I was not l e a v i n g something out. 

Q. Now, you've submitted a C-102 f o r each packet. 

A. P r o r a t i o n u n i t , yes, s i r . 

Q. No, a C-102 i s f o r each w e l l . Which w e l l s were 

you s u b m i t t i n g a C-102 f o r ? 

A. We used the Well 130 t o cover 130 and 131. 

Q. Which e x h i b i t i s t h a t ? 

A. That i s E x h i b i t 9, s i r . The 102 has the w e l l 

number, but w i t h i n the p r o r a t i o n u n i t we have both 130 and 

131 spotted, and we used t h a t same format f o r w e l l s 79 and 

80. 

Q. Now, I show t h a t you have signed each one of the 

C-102s and the date on i t i s March 17th. Now, have these 

been submitted t o the D i s t r i c t O f f i c e ? 

A. No, s i r , they have not. 

Q. They have not. Now, when I look a t these C-102s 
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— and t h i s i s going t o be submitted t o the D i s t r i c t , and 

not only f o r the w e l l t h a t you are a p p l y i n g f o r , t h a t the 

C-102 represents, you're showing the other w e l l s . Are 

these other w e l l s j u s t t h e r e f o r r e p r e s e n t a t i o n , or are 

they going t o be simultaneously dedicated? 

A. Simultaneously dedicated. 

Q. How about a P-and-A'd well? Why would you — Can 

you — I — 

A. You cannot dedicate a — The P-and-A w e l l s were 

put t h e r e f o r reference. 

Q. Okay, f o r reference. So they can be taken out? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. I f I remember r i g h t , there's q u i t e a few 

P-and-A'd w e l l s represented on the advertisement today. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, when you prepared your n o t i f i c a t i o n , which 

address d i d you use? Did you process t h a t — I mean, d i d 

you get t h a t o f f the w e l l f i l e s i n the Hobbs o f f i c e ? 

A. Those t h a t I d i d not already have I got o f f of 

t h a t , or I checked various other l o c a t i o n s f o r t h e 

addresses. Most of them we had used several o t h e r times. 

The one f o r Mr. Hartman had been used i n a 

previous one, and a r e t u r n r e c e i p t was received from him on 

t h a t one. 

Q. Okay. Now, i n E x h i b i t Number 10 you show t h a t a 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

47 

Hal J. Rasmussen was — I s he s t i l l operating? 

A. Yes, s i r , he has a l i g h t blue s e c t i o n down i n 16, 

which would be Un i t L e t t e r 0. 

Q. Now, the address t h a t you used f o r Mr. Hartman i n 

Midland, have you su c c e s s f u l l y sent correspondence t o Mr. 

Hartman before t o t h i s address? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

Q. Have you sent t o an address i n Tulsa — I mean, 

i n Dallas before? 

A. No, s i r , I have not used the Da l l a s o f f i c e . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: That's a l l t h e questions I 

have of Mr. Keathly based on what you have presented him 

here today as i d e n t i f y i n g the o f f s e t o p e r a t o r s . With t h a t 

I have no other questions of Mr. Keathly. 

MR. CARR: And Mr. Stogner, I do have a r e t u r n 

r e c e i p t from Mr. Hartman a t t h a t address, i f you would l i k e 

i t f o r the record. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You know, t h a t wouldn't be a 

bad idea t o put t h a t on the record. 

MR. CARR: This i s a l e t t e r we sent t o Mr. 

Hartman i n March of t h i s year a t t h a t address, and i t was 

received. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I know Mr. Hartman has a 

Dallas address, and I've been involved w i t h an issue before 

where a Midland address and a Dallas address was a t issue. 
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MR. CARR: And w i t h your permission, a t t h i s time 

we would c a l l our g e o l o g i c a l witness, Mr. Dave Pearcy. 

DAVID B. PEARCY, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name f o r the r e c o r d , please? 

A. David B. Pearcy. 

Q. Mr. Pearcy, where do you reside? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. I'm self-employed. I'm a g e o l o g i c a l c o n s u l t a n t , 

and I've been asked by Raptor t o a s s i s t i n t h e i r 

redevelopment program a t Jalmat. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. At t h e time of t h a t testimony, were your 

c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert i n petroleum geology accepted and 

made a matter o f record? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h each of the A p p l i c a t i o n s 

f i l e d i n these consolidated cases? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Have you made a g e o l o g i c a l study of the area 

which i s the subject of each A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you prepared t o share t h a t work w i t h Mr. 

Stogner a t t h i s time? 

A. Yes. 

MR. CARR: Are the witness's q u a l i f i c a t i o n s 

acceptable? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: They are. 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) Mr. Pearcy, l e t ' s f i r s t go t o the 

geology t h a t r e l a t e s t o the A p p l i c a t i o n i n Case 12,623, the 

State "A" A/C 1 Wells 130 and 131, and I would ask you t o 

f i r s t r e f e r t o what has been marked as Raptor E x h i b i t 18 

and review t h a t f o r the Examiner. 

A. E x h i b i t 18 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the top of the 

Yates sand i n the v i c i n i t y of Section 9 where the proposed 

Well Number 130 i s located i n the southeast q u a r t e r . 

Contour i n t e r v a l here i s 100 f e e t . 

The general c o n f i g u r a t i o n i s downdip t o t h e west 

and u n d u l a t i n g s t r u c t u r e on top of the Yates. 

Q. What data d i d you use i n c o n s t r u c t i n g t h i s 

s t r u c t u r e map? 

A. I attempted t o use a l l the logs t h a t I could 

l o c a t e , both i n l i b r a r i e s and i n Raptor's f i l e s , but i n 

many cases I ended up using a sample to p . I also found a 
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wide d i s p a r i t y of kinds and vintages of logs, which made i t 

sometimes a l i t t l e b i t d i f f i c u l t t o get something 

c o n s i s t e n t . 

Q. Generally describe the formation i n the area of 

t h i s w e l l , the 130. 

A. Okay, the gross i n t e r v a l of the Yates sand can be 

found i n a l l the w e l l s throughout t h i s area, although t h e r e 

are a l o t of v a r i a t i o n s from w e l l t o w e l l , as f a r as t h e 

pay q u a l i t y and performance. 

Generally, as w e ' l l be pro v i n g l a t e r on, these 

sands are l e n t i c u l a r i n nature, and they do again vary 

q u i t e a b i t from w e l l t o w e l l . We're able t o c o r r e l a t e 

much easier i n the north-south d i r e c t i o n than east-west. 

As you go p a r t i c u l a r l y down a t the west you f i n d a l o t of 

s t r a t i g r a p h i c v a r i a t i o n where the sands w i l l tend t o 

t h i c k e n . 

Again, these r e s e r v o i r s are h i g h l y heterogeneous 

i n both the Yates and Seven Rivers, and o f t e n do not have 

i n d i v i d u a l sands extending f o r long distances. 

Q. Did you prepare isopach maps of the formations a t 

issue? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. And why not? 

A. I s t r u g g l e d w i t h isopach maps f o r some time and 

found them d i f f i c u l t t o c o n s t r u c t , again because of t h e 
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d i f f e r e n t vintages and d i f f e r e n t kinds of logs. Throughout 

the Account 1 area, where th e r e have been now 129 w e l l s 

d r i l l e d , I was only able t o f i n d ten modern d e n s i t y neutron 

logs t h a t I f e l t f a i r l y c o n f i d e n t , where I could make some 

net-pay p i c k s . 

So again dea l i n g w i t h logs, the poor q u a l i t y , 

v a r i a b l e q u a l i t y , d i f f e r e n t k i n d s , I ended up j u s t 

p r e s e n t i n g t h i s s t r u c t u r e map as the best r e p r e s e n t a t i o n of 

the area. Any k i n d of isopach map which I might have 

prepared I found q u i t e s u b j e c t i v e . 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t 19. What i s t h i s ? 

A. E x h i b i t 19 i s a c r o s s - s e c t i o n , t h r e e - w e l l cross-

s e c t i o n . You see on the map I have shown the l i n e of 

s e c t i o n A-A', running west t o east. The l e f t - h a n d map i n 

t h i s case i s the Well Number 12, which was d r i l l e d i n the 

194 0s and u l t i m a t e l y was completed i n the uppermost s e c t i o n 

t h a t ' s shown w i t h the red p e r f o r a t i o n s through t h e Yates 

sand. 

There were p e r f o r a t i o n s w i t h i n the Seven Rivers 

i n t e r v a l , as I've also shown on the c r o s s - s e c t i o n . Some of 

the hole was not logged a t a l l , as y o u ' l l n o t i c e , and these 

p e r f o r a t i o n s i n the Seven Rivers i n t h i s w e l l were found 

nonproductive. Although t h e r e was an i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l of 

gas, i n checking some of the o l d records, t h e r e was never 

any k i n d of s i g n i f i c a n t p r o d u c t i o n of gas from t h e Seven 
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Rivers. 

Next well to the r i g h t , of course, i s the 

location f o r the Number 130, which i s the due east o f f s e t 

t o the Number 12. 

And then I jogged t o the south t o the Ares State 

w e l l , which w i l l be the south o f f s e t t o the proposed 

location, and I'm showing a few perforations which were 

made down near the bottom of t h i s w e l l , which were ascribed 

to the Langlie-Mattix f i e l d . 

The Yates production i n t h i s w e l l has been shown 

again with the red bar near the top, and I want t o point 

out only parts of the Yates sand were ever perforated i n 

t h i s w e l l . They did never complete the e n t i r e Yates 

section. 

On the right-hand side of the cross-section i s 

the Number 127 which Mr. Lawrence has refer r e d t o e a r l i e r . 

You can see from the red dashes on here the i n t e r v a l s where 

we have made perforations i n t h i s w e l l , and we now believe 

we're get t i n g contribution from the ent i r e Yates and Seven 

Rivers section, which i s included i n the Jalmat Pool. 

Q. Now, Mr. Stogner had asked about how Raptor i s 

going about perforating i n the in d i v i d u a l wells. This 127 

i s a good example, showing how you s e l e c t i v e l y go a f t e r 

i n d i v i d u a l — 

A. That's correct, you can see i n d i v i d u a l 
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p e r f o r a t i o n s t h a t we attempt t o make i n each one of the 

sands, because we bel i e v e each sand has the p o t e n t i a l t o 

c o n t r i b u t e pay t h a t may or may not be producing i n the 

o f f s e t w e l l s . 

Q. Mr. Pearcy, what conclusions can you reach about 

a w e l l a t the proposed l o c a t i o n of the Number 13 0? 

A. I want t o p o i n t out t h a t the Yates sand does t h i n 

from l e f t t o r i g h t across the area so t h a t we do have more 

Yates sands and b e t t e r Yates sands, we b e l i e v e , i n the 

Number 12 and the proposed 13 0, as compared t o t h e Number 

127. 

Also want t o p o i n t out t h a t t h e e n t i r e Yates 

i n t e r v a l was not p e r f o r a t e d i n the Ares State, which i s due 

south of the Number 13 0, and the Seven Rivers has been 

l a r g e l y ignored i n these other two w e l l s besides t h e 127, 

as w e l l as most of the w e l l s i n the area, and we b e l i e v e 

t h a t s u b s t a n t i a l reserves w i l l be recovered by t h e Number 

130 from both the Yates and Seven Rivers sands. 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked Raptor E x h i b i t 

20. Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t ? I s t h i s t he same s t r u c t u r e 

map t h a t you presented a few minutes ago f o r t h e Well 

Number 130? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h a t same top of Yates sand 

showing i n t h i s case cross Section B-B', which g e n e r a l l y 

runs from n o r t h t o south through the proposed Well Number 
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130 and down again t o the Number 127. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o t h a t c r o s s - s e c t i o n , 

E x h i b i t 21. 

A. This s e c t i o n shows t h a t the f a r l e f t - h a n d w e l l , 

the Number 100, which i s due n o r t h o f f s e t t o the proposed 

Well Number 131, was again p e r f o r a t e d i n the Yates and i n 

the upper p a r t of the Seven Rivers only. They had 

overlooked i n t h i s w e l l , we b e l i e v e , a l o t of reserves and 

the r e s t of the Seven Rivers t h a t i s s t i l l i n c l u d e d i n the 

Jalmat zone, perhaps because of some e a r l i e r bad 

experiences l i k e the Well Number 12 we c i t e d e a r l i e r . 

Of course we have the proposed w e l l , which i s the 

next one, the bar shown there. 

And then we move over t o the east, the Number 56. 

This i s one w e l l where they again attempted t o complete i n 

some Seven Rivers Sands but were completely unsuccessful i n 

e s t a b l i s h i n g production i n t h i s w e l l , and w i t h o u t t e s t i n g 

the Yates sands, t h i s w e l l was plugged and abandoned, again 

going t o the Well Number 127 t h a t you've seen e a r l i e r , on 

the f a r r i g h t - h a n d side, w i t h the p e r f o r a t i o n s t h a t Raptor 

has made t h e r e . 

Q. And what conclusions from a geologic p o i n t of 

view can you reach about a w e l l a t the l o c a t i o n proposed 

f o r the State "A" Account 131 we l l ? 

A. We again want t o p o i n t out t h a t t h a t the Seven 
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Rivers has been l a r g e l y unexploited i n t h i s area, although 

we found i t t o be productive i n the Number 12 7. Again, 

these cross-sections are s t r a t i g r a p h i c , hung on the top of 

the Yates, but the s t r u c t u r e on the top of t h e Seven Rivers 

i s not t h a t d i f f e r e n t between these w e l l s , and i n s p i t e of 

some of the bad experiences p r i o r operators had, the Seven 

Rivers i s , indeed, productive. 

I want t o again p o i n t out t h a t t he Yates sands 

are t h i c k e r i n the v i c i n i t y of the Well Number 100 and 

proposed Well Number 131, such t h a t t h e r e are bound t o be 

some of these Yates i n t e r v a l s of sand t h a t we have not 

contacted i n the Number 127 and t h e r e f o r e w e ' l l be unable 

t o d r a i n i t i n t h a t wellbore. 

Q. Do you need t o d r i l l both the 13 0 and 131 on t h i s 

spacing u n i t ? 

A. We c e r t a i n l y do, i n order t o conta c t a l l the 

Yates and Seven Rivers prospective sand i n t e r v a l s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o the g e o l o g i c a l 

p r e s e n t a t i o n i n Case 12,624, and I ' d ask you t o review t h e 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you have prepared t h a t r e l a t e s t o the 

State "A" Account 1 Well Number 133, E x h i b i t 22. 

A. That's r i g h t , I have prepared a s i m i l a r s t r u c t u r e 

map on top of the Yates and i n c r o s s - s e c t i o n t o help 

support our p o s i t i o n f o r the Number 133 w e l l b o r e . 

Q. Do you want t o move from t h a t t o t h e cross-
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s e c t i o n immediately, or do you — 

A. Yes, I want t o p o i n t out c r o s s - s e c t i o n C-C1, 

again on t h i s top of Yates s t r u c t u r e . The Yates i s a less 

dramatic o f a s t r u c t u r e i n t h i s area on the f a r east side 

of Raptor's property. And again, t h i s c r o s s - s e c t i o n runs 

g e n e r a l l y north-south d i r e c t i o n , and I have again included 

one of t h e newer w e l l s , Number 128, a t the n o r t h end of the 

s e c t i o n . 

I f I may r e f e r t o the c r o s s - s e c t i o n , the Number 

128 i s on the l e f t - h a n d s i d e , again showing the 

p e r f o r a t i o n s t h a t Raptor has made i n each one of the sands 

w i t h i n t he Yates and the Seven Rivers. We b e l i e v e t h a t a 

hole i s necessary i n or very close t o each one of these 

sands in> order t o produce a l l the reserves t h a t are w i t h i n 

both the Yates and the Seven Rivers i n t e r v a l . 

We then proceed t o the Number 13 3 l o c a t i o n and 

thence t o the w e l l immediately south of the 133, which i s 

th e o l d Number 53, where th e r e were p e r f o r a t i o n s made 

throughout the Yates and Seven Rivers i n t e r v a l . This i s 

one of t h e exception w e l l s , which happen t o be deeper i n 

th e area. 

I included t h i s i n the cr o s s - s e c t i o n because the 

a d d i t i o n a l c o n t r o l , although again I want t o p o i n t out t h a t 

t h e Seven Rivers was l a r g e l y overlooked i n t h i s area as 

w e l l , so t h a t we expect the 133 w i l l be able t o produce 
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s i g n i f i c a n t reserves from the Seven Rivers sands as w e l l as 

the Yates sands. 

Q. And are these reserves t h a t w i t h o u t t h i s w e l l are 

not going t o be recovered? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , any reserves w i t h i n the area of 

the 133 are l a r g e l y going t o be overlooked. The other 

w e l l s , as Mr. Lawrence w i l l soon show, i n the area are 

producing a t g e n e r a l l y low r a t e s , and i f we do not d r i l l 

t h i s w e l l a t the 133 l o c a t i o n w e ' l l be l o s i n g some 

reserves. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o the g e o l o g i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n 

f o r Case 12,625, and I ' d l i k e you t o present the 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t r e l a t e s t o the State Account 2 Wells 79 

and 80, and I ' d ask you t o s t a r t w i t h E x h i b i t 24. 

A. E x h i b i t 24 i s , again, the top of the Yates i n the 

v i c i n i t y of Section 11, where both 79 and the 80 w e l l s are 

proposed. Cross-section D-D' has an elbow t o i t . Again, 

i t takes i n the w e l l immediately n o r t h of the Number 79 and 

the w e l l immediately east of the 79. I n t h i s area t o o , as 

I ' l l show, we have a l o t of d i s c o n t i n u i t i e s and 

h e t e r o g e n e i t i e s i n the r e s e r v o i r t h a t w i l l r e q u i r e t h e 

d r i l l i n g of the Number 79. 

I ' d a l s o l i k e t o p o i n t out a t t h i s time t h a t the 

w e l l t h a t ' s a t p o i n t D on the c r o s s - s e c t i o n i s i n t h e 

Eumont f i e l d , and i t ' s located 660 f e e t from t h e Raptor 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

58 

lease l i n e . I t ' s a Eumont gas w e l l t h a t I ' l l show i n a 

cro s s - s e c t i o n . I t i s completed i n Yates and Seven Rivers, 

and t h i s i s one t h a t would present a c o r r e l a t i v e - r i g h t s 

problem where Raptor w i l l need t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l a t 

l o c a t i o n 79 i n order t o p r o t e c t t h e i r gas. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , are you ready t o go t o the cross-

section? 

A. The cross - s e c t i o n shows the w e l l immediately 

n o r t h , which i s the State N Number 5, c u r r e n t l y operated by 

OXY. The p e r f o r a t i o n s t h a t were made i n t h i s w e l l range 

from i n the T a n s i l above the purple l i n e t h e r e , through the 

Yates and down through most of the Seven Ri v e r s , although 

t h e r e are a few f e e t down a t the bottom which they d i d not 

d r i l l t o a c t u a l l y penetrate i n t o the Eunice Pool. There i s 

a t w i n w e l l t h e r e which was completed i n t h e Eunice Pool. 

We go then t o Number 79. Again, we need t o d r i l l 

t h i s w e l l t o p r o t e c t our r i g h t s . 

And then the eastern w e l l , t he Number 15, shows 

t h a t p e r f o r a t i o n s were only made i n the upper t w o - t h i r d s of 

the Yates sand, and no p e r f o r a t i o n s were ever made i n the 

Seven Rivers i n t h i s w e l l . So t h i s i s another case where 

you have s u b s t a n t i a l reserves i n the Seven Rivers t h a t we 

w i l l lose and never produce unless we d r i l l t h e l o c a t i o n 

f o r the Well Number 79. 

Again, d i s c o n t i n u i t i e s of the zones. You can see 
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t h a t the sands t h i c k e n i n t h i s case toward t h e Number 15, 

w i t h i n the Yates, and we j u s t b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e are some 

other zones w i t h i n the Yates t h a t w e ' l l f i n d t h a t have not 

been a f f e c t e d by the OXY N 5, and j u s t need t o get t h a t 

w e l l d r i l l e d as soon as possib l e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , Mr. Pearcy, l e t ' s go t o the 

i n f o r m a t i o n on the Account 2 Well Number 80. I ' d ask you 

t o r e f e r t o E x h i b i t Number 26. 

A. E x h i b i t 26 i s the same s t r u c t u r e map on top of 

the Yates, t h i s time showing c r o s s - s e c t i o n l i n e E-E', which 

runs from n o r t h t o south through the proposed Well Number 

80. 

Q. Now l e t ' s go t o the c r o s s - s e c t i o n --

A. Okay, r e f e r r i n g t o the c r o s s - s e c t i o n — 

Q. — E x h i b i t 27. 

A. — i n t h i s case, Mr. Stogner, t h e w e l l on the 

l e f t side i s one of the newer w e l l s d r i l l e d by Raptor, the 

Number 75. Based on geologic e v a l u a t i o n , t h e Seven Rivers 

sands appear t o be so poor here we only p e r f o r a t e d one of 

them near the top, although we do b e l i e v e t h a t these sands 

do improve g e t t i n g away from t h i s w e l l b o r e and t h a t t h i s 

Number 80 w i l l probably f i n d some other Seven Rivers sands 

t h a t we d i d not even open i n t h i s new w e l l b o r e . 

Again, Number 15 at the r i g h t - h a n d s i d e , was 

never t e s t e d i n the Seven Rivers, but based on our 
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experience we c e r t a i n l y b e l i e v e t h e r e are a l o t of Seven 

Rivers reserves, as w e l l as the Yates, t o be recovered i n 

t h i s area and t h a t w i l l be l o s t unless these two w e l l s are 

d r i l l e d . 

Q. Would you summarize f o r the Examiner the 

g e o l o g i c a l conclusions you can reach from your work i n t h i s 

area? 

A. My work i n the area, Mr. Stogner, i n d i c a t e s t h a t 

t h e r e are so many d i s c o n t i n u i t i e s w i t h i n both the Yates and 

Seven Rivers sands t h a t these w e l l s w i l l be needed i n order 

t o e f f e c t i v e l y d r a i n the reserves t h a t Raptor has i n the 

area. 

Raptor's p r i o r success has also i l l u s t r a t e d t h a t 

i n f i l l d r i l l i n g i n t h i s way on undeveloped 40s f i n d s 

s i g n i f i c a n t reserves. I've looked up several other 

references published by the West Texas Geological Society 

and the AAPG which f u r t h e r document d i s c o n t i n u i t i e s i n the 

h e t e r o g e n e i t y i n both the Yates and Seven Ri v e r s , t o the 

p o i n t where we f i r m l y b e l i e v e t h a t unless t h i s r e s e r v o i r 

can be developed on 40-acre spacing, t h a t w e ' l l be l o s i n g 

reserves. 

So these a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s c e r t a i n l y need t o be 

d r i l l e d . 

Q. Mr. Pearcy, were Raptor E x h i b i t s 18 through 27 

prepared by you? 
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A. Yes, they were. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, a t t h i s time we would 

move the admission i n t o evidence of Raptor E x h i b i t s 18 

through 27. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 18 through 27 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence. 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my d i r e c t 

examination of Mr. Pearcy. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Let's take a lunch break, and 

w e ' l l reconvene here a t 1:45. 

MR. CARR: 1:45? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I'm so r r y , 1:30. 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 12:25 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 1:30 p.m.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: This hearing w i l l come t o 

order. Let's see, what's Mr. Lawrence going t o — 

MR. CARR: Mr. Lawrence i s going t o come back and 

present t a b l e s on each of the w e l l s s i m i l a r t o the one he 

showed i n h i s f i r s t p r e s e n t a t i o n on the 127, which g i v e 

data on each of the o f f s e t t i n g w e l l s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Okay, Mr. Pearcy, i n l o o k i n g — I'm going t o 
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r e f e r now t o E x h i b i t s Number 18, 20, 19 and 21, t h i s set 

t h a t deals w i t h the request of 12,623. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Now, i n looking a t the map, you show a low area 

i n your s t r u c t u r e map. I s t h i s the i n t e n t , i s t o get the 

pr o d u c t i o n out of t h i s low area? 

A. Not ne c e s s a r i l y , Mr. Stogner. I do have a low 

which I do have some c o n t r o l on t o the n o r t h and t o the 

south and was j u s t attempting t o show some c o n t i n u i t y of 

the s t r u c t u r e across t h a t area. I would tend t o b e l i e v e 

both the 13 0 and 131 w i l l be a t a very s i m i l a r s t r u c t u r a l 

p o s i t i o n t o the Number 100 and t o the areas Number 1, which 

are south of t h a t l i t t l e low. 

Q. Now, when I look a t your A-A' c r o s s - s e c t i o n and 

l o o k i n g a t the o l d , what i s t h a t , State "A" A/C 1 Number 

12 — 

A. Number 12. 

Q. — what's i t s c u r r e n t status? 

A. Current s t a t u s i s P-and-A'd. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And Mr. Lawrence w i l l have a t a b l e showing t h a t 

w e l l was plugged i n 1994, a f t e r making n e a r l y 5 BCF. 

Q. Okay. Well, because the one I i n t e r p r e t t he — 

one of the s t i p u l a t i o n s i n the d e c l a r a t o r y judgment i s 160-

acre spacing, i n other words, adequately d r a i n i n g w i t h one 
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w e l l per 160. So you're going t o put i n two w e l l s i n here. 

But I haven't seen any reason why you c o uldn't 

put j u s t one w e l l s o r t of i n between the 3 0 and 31 and a 

l i t t l e t o the west. And as I'm very w e l l aware o f , you may 

be aware o f , I know Mr. Carr i s very aware o f , and I t h i n k 

some other p a r t i e s i n here are very aware o f , t h a t Raptor 

has no problem about gerrymandering these p r o r a t i o n u n i t s , 

perhaps b r i n g i n g t h a t 4 0-acre t r a c t i n t h a t i s the 

southeast of the — I'm s o r r y , the southwest of the 

southeast, and g e t t i n g more toward the center of t h a t 

q u a r t e r s e c t i o n , wouldn't t h a t — and t h a t might even save 

some d r i l l i n g cost, i f you more centered t h a t w e l l i n t h a t 

160. Wouldn't t h a t also serve the same purpose? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e so, Mr. Stogner. Again, p o i n t i n g 

out the 127, which i s also on t h i s map, t h a t w e l l was 

surrounded by seven other w e l l s which had produced from the 

Yates and Seven Rivers, and y e t we're going t o get .8 B's 

out of t h i s w e l l w i t h v i r t u a l l y no p r o d u c t i o n from th e 

surrounding w e l l s . 

Q. Well, t h a t was when — never -- A l l r i g h t , you 

were wrong as I was wrong. I mean, I ' l l be the f i r s t . I 

was wrong by a l l o w i n g a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s t o be put i n out 

t h e r e . That's the way I was i n t e r p r e t i n g the r u l e s and 

r e g u l a t i o n s a l l those years, the way Dan N u t t e r t a u g h t i t 

t o me and the way Dick Stamets taught i t t o me, but 
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obviously I'm wrong, pursuant t o t h i s . 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. But now, no, you can't have more than one w e l l 

per 160, so you may not have a choice. So t h a t ' s where we 

have got t o look a t . So what's happened i n t h e 127 before, 

again, I ask, why can't j u s t one w e l l more toward the 

center w i t h what you're showing here, t h a t low, wouldn't 

t h a t s u f f i c e ? 

A. Mr. Stogner, I don't b e l i e v e i t would. Although 

we have d r i l l e d some of these w e l l s under r u l e s t h a t are 

now apparently outdated, I t h i n k we have c e r t a i n l y proved 

t o ourselves t h a t we're l o s i n g reserves i f we l i m i t 

ourselves t o one w e l l per 160 acres. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I s your next witness going t o 

show t h a t , Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: I t h i n k when you — We're going t o 

present the data on the o f f s e t t i n g p r o p e r t i e s , and I 

be l i e v e i t w i l l , yes. I mean on the o f f s e t t i n g 40. 

Q. (By Examiner Stogner) Okay, i n r e f e r r i n g t o 

E x h i b i t Number 24, l e t ' s take a look a t the w e l l i n Section 

11. 

A. I n cross-section D-D'? 

Q. Yes, D-D'. And also you had mentioned about the 

w e l l t h a t ' s 330 f e e t away. 

A. I f I d i d say 330, I misspoke. I t ' s 660 f e e t from 
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the lease l i n e — 

Q. Oh, okay. 

A. — t h a t ' s the OXY — 

Q. Oh, the OXY one. That's 660 fee t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I've got so many maps out i n f r o n t of me. Then 

t h i s map i s not t o scale, then — 

A. No, s i r , the — 

Q. -- because i s n ' t the Number 79 w e l l going t o be 

660? 

A. That's r i g h t , the scales on these were probably 

blown up or shrunk somewhat, so the distances on a l l those 

w e l l s , i f you're l o o k i n g at E x h i b i t Number 24, j u s t t o the 

n o r t h of our Section 11, most of those distances of 

st a n d o f f s are 660, such as the — 

Q. That OXY w e l l looks r e a l close — 

A. Well — 

Q. — so t h a t ' s misleading, so I need t o put a b i g X 

on — 

A. I t should be a 660. 

Q. Well now, the Number 4 looks 660-660, because i t 

seems t o m i r r o r the Number 79 — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. But the w e l l up there t o the n o r t h and east, 

you're saying, i s 660. So what's Number 4 w e l l ' s l o c a t i o n ? 
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Perhaps we need t o redraw t h i s map. 

A. I f I had a l i t t l e b i t more time here, Mr. 

Stogner, I might be able t o f i n d a scout t i c k e t on t h a t 

w e l l and — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I t e l l you what, why don't --

Mr. Carr, have E x h i b i t Number 24 re-done, because t h i s i s 

very, very misleading. And i f i t goes beyond t h i s p o i n t i t 

w i l l l i k e — I mean, I was under the impression t h a t t h i s 

w e l l was needed t o o f f s e t t h i s o f f s e t drainage t h a t i s 330 

f e e t away. 

THE WITNESS: I can v e r i f y the scales on t h i s 

map, Mr. Stogner, but our p o s i t i o n i s — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Well, i f t h a t be the case you 

shouldn't have made i t such a -- t h a t misleading. And 

there' s no — I n f a c t , I'm going t o have you re-do E x h i b i t 

Number 24 based on t h a t , Mr. Carr. There's no sense i n 

having i t t h a t bad. 

THE WITNESS: Would the scale — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You shouldn't have done t h a t 

a t a l l . I mean, i f t h a t had — I had a whole l i n e of 

qu e s t i o n i n g on t h a t . Yeah, i n f a c t I'm going t o give 

E x h i b i t Number 24 back t o you, I'm not even going t o take 

i t . I don't want i t t o get confused i n w i t h t h i s . You are 

t o re-do t h a t , Mr. Carr. 

MR. CARR: We'll re-do i t . 
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Q. (By Examiner Stogner) Now I'm beginning t o 

question maybe some of the scales on these other maps. 

A. Well, by "scale", Mr. Stogner, what I'm r e f e r r i n g 

t o — 

Q. Well, take a look a t i t . Doesn't i t look c l o s e r 

than 660-660, t h a t OXY w e l l t h a t you keep r e f e r r i n g t o as 

— I t looks 330-330 t o me. 

A. I t looks j u s t about as f a r away from the lease 

l i n e as Number 79 t h a t we posted on t h e r e , and as f a r — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Well, then you have me a wrong 

map. I ' d suggest, Mr. Carr, t h a t we check a l l of the maps 

a f t e r today. 

I t ' s these l i t t l e t h i n g s l i k e t h i s , the reason 

we're here today, Mr. Pearcy, i s because the Jalmat got 

l i k e t h i s . I've spent I don't know how many countless 

hours c o r r e c t i n g problems, p u t t i n g a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n 

i n an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order t h a t I shouldn't have had t o do, 

t h a t the a p p l i c a n t needed t o do. When I get an a p p l i c a t i o n 

t h a t ' s t h r e e pages long, an order t h a t ' s issued i s f o u r 

pages long, and the f i l e i s a h a l f inch t h i c k — There's no 

need of t h a t . And i t ' s t h i n g s l i k e t h i s . . . 

Q. (By Examiner Stogner) Okay, r e f e r r i n g t o E x h i b i t 

Number 23 and 22 now, the proposed p e r f o r a t e d i n t e r v a l f o r 

the Number 13 3 w i l l be t o p i c k up t h a t — which zones 

again? 
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A. The Number 133, we want t o c e r t a i n l y p e r f o r a t e 

w i t h i n the Seven Rivers. That zone has been proven 

p r o d u c t i v e i n the Well Number 128, again, which i s a t the 

l e f t end of the cross - s e c t i o n , our new completion. And 

many of these sands were completed i n the Number 53 as 

w e l l . 

I ' l l l e t Mr. Lawrence comment a b i t on the 

treatment on the Number 53 w e l l which was completed i n the 

l a t e 1970s, and we j u s t — Even though they d i d p e r f o r a t e 

e v e r y t h i n g , I'm q u i t e c e r t a i n they made a whole l o t more 

holes than we're i n the h a b i t of making, and t h e r e are 

c e r t a i n l y questions as t o i f they were c o n t a c t i n g , each 

w e l l , the zones t h a t they p e r f o r a t e d . 

So yes, s i r , the Seven Rivers i s c e r t a i n l y an 

o b j e c t i v e here as w e l l as the Yates. 

Q. Okay. Now, I don't show t h a t the Number 12 6 i s 

i n a c r o s s - s e c t i o n . I s i t , or -- I t ' s not, i s i t ? That i s 

the w e l l i n U n i t L e t t e r C of Section 24. 

A. Yes, s i r , the 126 was a w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d 

r e c e n t l y by — excuse me, was not d r i l l e d by Raptor, i t was 

d r i l l e d by a previous operator. And w i t h j u s t a moment 

here — That was d r i l l e d i n the e a r l y 1990s and was 

completed only i n the Yates form a t i o n , as Mr. Lawrence w i l l 

be showing a t a b l e of here b r i e f l y . 

Q. Okay. Now, can t h a t one be recompleted such t h a t 
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-- I mean, since i t ' s already a w e l l , and w i t h o u t r i s i n g — 

needing any f u r t h e r a u t h o r i z a t i o n from anybody, could t h a t 

be recompleted i n the Seven Rivers and p i c k up t h e same 

area i n which you're wanting t o pe r f o r a t e ? 

A. I t would be p o s s i b l e , but again, t h e Yates — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: No f u r t h e r q u estions, t h a t 

w i l l be good. Okay. 

Mr. Carr, I had a whole bunch of questions on 

t h a t other one, but because of scale on the map t h a t ' s a t 

hand, I was under the assumption t h a t t h a t was a t a worst 

unorthodox l o c a t i o n . 

That concludes my questions of t h i s w i t n e s s . You 

may be excused. 

Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, a t t h i s 

time we r e c a l l John Lawrence. I ' d request t h a t t h e record 

r e f l e c t the witness has p r e v i o u s l y been q u a l i f i e d and 

remains under oath. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

JOHN J. LAWRENCE (Recalled), 

the witness h e r e i n , having been p r e v i o u s l y sworn upon h i s 

oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Mr. Lawrence, you're f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e 
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A p p l i c a t i o n s f i l e d i n each of these c o n s o l i d a t e d cases by 

Raptor Resources, have you not? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And you've made an engineering study of t h e area 

which i s the subject of each A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you're now prepared t o share t h a t work w i t h 

Mr. Stogner? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o go t o E x h i b i t s 28 through 32 and work 

through these w i t h you, and I would l i k e you t o go t o f i r s t 

E x h i b i t Number 28. I t h i n k i t would be h e l p f u l t o again 

i d e n t i f y t h i s and review the i n f o r m a t i o n on i t f o r t h e 

Examiner. 

A. Yes, Mr. Stogner, these are the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s 

t h a t o f f s e t t he w e l l l o c a t i o n number f o r t h e Well Number 

13 0, and again what we have put on here i s a h i s t o r i c a l as 

t o when the w e l l was completed, what i n t e r v a l i t was 

a c t u a l l y completed i n and the si z e and nature of t h e 

treatment t h a t was put on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , as w e l l as 

the cumulative prod u c t i o n t o t a l s from those p a r t i c u l a r 

w e l l s , and c u r r e n t producing r a t e . 

And as you can see, o f f s e t t i n g t h e Account 1 Well 

Number 13 0, w i t h the exception of the Number 127, a l l the 

other w e l l s are c u r r e n t l y i n a c t i v e , and t h e r e ' s no c u r r e n t 
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p r o d u c t i o n o f f s e t t i n g t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n . 

The Well Number 127 i s a diagonal o f f s e t t h a t was 

completed i n September, 2 000, by Raptor and was a good 

completion f o r us. 

Again, t h i s i s the basis t h a t we have been using 

i n t r y i n g t o e s t a b l i s h , you know, the o p p o r t u n i t y f o r 

s e l e c t i n g a given l o c a t i o n . You can see by the tremendous 

d i f f e r e n c e and discrepancies i n the i n t e r v a l s completed i n 

these w e l l s , as w e l l as the siz e of the treatments t h a t 

were u t i l i z e d , they range from a n a t u r a l completion t o one 

of the w e l l s a c t u a l l y was f r a c ' d w i t h 192,000 pounds of 

sand, which was our more recent completion. I t o f f s e t s 

t h i s . 

We f e e l t h a t a 40-acre l o c a t i o n i s j u s t i f i e d 

here. As the r e s e r v o i r does move t o the west, t h e r e i s a 

t h i c k e n i n g of the sand formations i n here, they are 

l e n t i c u l a r i n nature, and we b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e are 

s i g n i f i c a n t reserves t o be recovered by p l a c i n g a w e l l i n 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , can a w e l l a t t h i s l o c a t i o n 

e f f i c i e n t l y and economically d r a i n reserves from t h i s 

spacing or p r o r a t i o n u n i t t h a t cannot otherwise be 

produced? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t Number 29. Would you 
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i d e n t i f y t h i s , please? 

A. E x h i b i t 29 i s a s i m i l a r e x h i b i t f o r the Account 1 

Well Number 131. Again, a s i g n i f i c a n t number of the 

o f f s e t s here have j u s t been completed i n t h e Yates. There 

i s one producing o f f s e t w e l l t h a t i s c u r r e n t l y making 14 

MCF a day. A l l the other o f f s e t l o c a t i o n s are i n a c t i v e or 

plugged and abandoned, so there's — you're not 

j e o p a r d i z i n g any type of accelerated d e c l i n e t h a t would 

a f f e c t the o f f s e t l o c a t i o n s , because they are a l l c u r r e n t l y 

not producing, w i t h the exception of the Well Number 55. 

Again, there i s a d i f f e r e n c e i n the s i z e and 

treatment t h a t was performed on these p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s , and 

a l l t he o f f s e t s t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n have not 

developed both the Yates and Seven Rivers sands t h a t we 

would have i d e n t i f i e d as prospective pay. 

Q. When we look a t your plans f o r t h i s w e l l , i s i t 

your testimony t h a t the reserves you would recover are new 

reserves, not j u s t recovering reserves a t an accelerated 

r a t e ? 

A. They would be new reserves, because you can see 

based on the o f f s e t producers, there's b a s i c a l l y very 

l i t t l e o f f s e t production associated r i g h t now. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o E x h i b i t Number 30 — t h i s 

i s i n Case 12,634 — and review the i n f o r m a t i o n on the 

Account 1 Well Number 133. 
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A. Again, these are the e i g h t o f f s e t s t o the 

proposed l o c a t i o n i n the State "A" Account 1 Well Number 

133, and as you look at i t there are -- one, two, t h r e e 

f o u r -- f i v e p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s t h a t are c u r r e n t l y producing 

i n and around t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , but the p r o d u c t i o n i s 

very marginal. The highest producing r a t e on one of the 

o f f s e t s i s c u r r e n t l y 39 MCF per day. 

T y p i c a l l y , these w e l l s , again, have had a 

tremendous v a r i a t i o n i n the size and scope of the treatment 

t h a t was performed on them. There i s very l i t t l e 

a ssociated o f f s e t production, and again t h e r e are 

discrepancies as t o what zones were completed i n those 

o f f s e t w e l l s , which again we f e e l t h e r e has been bypassed 

reserves i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area by p r i o r completion 

e f f o r t s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o Number 31. This i s the 

Well Number 79, and t h i s i s Case 12,625. What does t h i s 

e x h i b i t show? 

A. These are the o f f s e t s t o the proposed State "A" 

A/C 2 Well Number 79 up i n Section 11, and t h i s i s the 

p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n t h a t i s an o f f s e t t o the OXY w e l l t h a t 

I guess i s i n question r i g h t now, Mr. Stogner. 

Again, we f e e l t h a t a l o c a t i o n t h e r e i s j u s t i f i e d 

due t o the f a c t t h a t OXY has completed t h e i r w e l l s i n both 

— t h e i r p a r t i c u l a r w e l l i n both the Yates and the Jalmat 
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o f f s e t t i n g us. Again, t h e r e i s a tremendous d i f f e r e n c e i n 

the v i n t a g e of these w e l l s , the i n t e r v a l s t h a t they were 

a c t u a l l y completed i n , and the size of the treatment, 

ranging from one of the w e l l s being t r e a t e d w i t h j u s t 2000 

g a l l o n s of a c i d t o one of the recompletions t h a t was done 

by a p r i o r operator u t i l i z i n g 172,000 pounds of sand. 

And as you can see, t h a t p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n , you 

know, has cum'd 561 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas t o date and 

i s s t i l l producing 32 MCF. But the o f f s e t w e l l s are 

producing a t f a i r l y marginal r a t e s . T h i r t y - t w o t o 49 MCF 

i s the c u r r e n t production from the o f f s e t s t h a t are a c t i v e . 

A number of the w e l l s t h a t are also o f f s e t t i n g us 

here are w e l l s t h a t are producing out of the Grayburg-Queen 

fo r m a t i o n t h a t don't have an e x i s t i n g Jalmat p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. And f i n a l l y , l e t ' s go t o E x h i b i t Number 32, the 

data on the State A/C 2 Well Number 80. 

A. This i s the p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n t h a t i s a l s o i n 

Section 11. Ty p i c a l of the vi n t a g e f r a c s t h a t were done i n 

the 1950s and 1960s, several were t r e a t e d w i t h a much 

smaller treatment than would t y p i c a l l y be used i n t h i s day 

and time. Again, t h e r e have been bypassed zones i n both 

the Yates and the Seven Rivers formation i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

area. 

You do have two w e l l s up here t h a t have a l i t t l e 

more s i g n i f i c a n t p r o d u c t i o n , the State A/C 2 Number 62 and 
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then the Well Number 75. The Well Number 75 was a new-

d r i l l l o c a t i o n t h a t Raptor has done and has been a 

successful completion f o r us i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area. 

Q. Mr. Lawrence, i n your o p i n i o n , based on your 

engineering study of the area and your experience i n t h e 

redevelopment program of the Jalmat Gas Pool, are each of 

the f i v e w e l l s which are the subject of today's hearing 

necessary t o e f f i c i e n t l y and economically produce remaining 

reserves under each of these three spacing u n i t s i n the 

Jalmat Gas Pool? 

A. I d e f i n i t e l y b e l i e v e t h a t they are t h e r e 

necessary t o be able t o produce the remaining reserves i n 

t h i s gas r e s e r v o i r . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n and the d r i l l i n g of each of these w e l l s r e s u l t 

i n the recovery of reserves t h a t otherwise would be l e f t i n 

the ground? 

A. Yes, there's no question as t o t h a t . I t h i n k 

when you look a t the f a c t t h a t the i n i t i a l producing r a t e s 

from our w e l l s are b e t t e r , greater than the w e l l s t h a t were 

recompleted by Rasmussen and Williams t e n years ago, 

there's no evidence of any accelerated p r o d u c t i o n based on 

i n d i v i d u a l w e l l - c u r v e a n a l y s i s and leasewide p r o d u c t i o n 

a n a l y s i s , and t h a t we've i n f a c t doubled our e x i s t i n g 

p r o d u c t i o n , more than doubled our e x i s t i n g p r o d u c t i o n , 
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based on the performance of the work t h a t we have done. 

Q. And these are new reserves? 

A. These are new reserves. I t h i n k w i t h o u t question 

they are new reserves. 

Q. W i l l approval of each of these A p p l i c a t i o n s 

otherwise be i n the best i n t e r e s t s of con s e r v a t i o n , the 

preventi o n of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 28 through 32 prepared by you? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time, Mr. Stogner, we'd move 

the admission i n t o evidence of Raptor E x h i b i t s 28 through 

32. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 28 through 32 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: That concludes my d i r e c t of Mr. 

Lawrence. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Mr. Lawrence, as f a r as some of these — these 

w e l l s are, a t l e a s t i n some instances — i n a q u a r t e r 

s e c t i o n t h a t has an e x i s t i n g w e l l , why can't those w e l l s 

t h a t are e x i s t i n g be recompleted t o these zones or i n a 

manner i n which w i l l a f f o r d those zones i n which you're 
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going a f t e r t h i s time production? 

A. Part of my concern w i t h t h a t , Mr. Stogner, i s the 

f a c t t h a t you have w e l l s t h a t t y p i c a l l y have been completed 

i n the Yates formation and have had f r a c s done t o them. I t 

i s more d i f f i c u l t and r i s k y t o come back i n and p e r f o r a t e 

below e x i s t i n g f r a c t u r e s and put a s t i m u l a t i o n on those 

p a r t i c u l a r zones when you have maybe only s e v e r a l hundred 

f e e t separating the p a r t i c u l a r i n t e r v a l s . 

The question or concern t h a t I would have i s the 

p o t e n t i a l t h a t you might f r a c i n t o some e x i s t i n g f r a c t u r e s 

and not create the f r a c length i n the p a r t i c u l a r w e l l t h a t 

you're d e a l i n g w i t h . 

So i t ' s my preference t h a t i t helps t o have a new 

we l l b o r e , b e t t e r cement. We can be very s e l e c t i v e i n the 

i n t e r v a l t h a t we p e r f o r a t e and then i n t u r n c o n t r o l the 

s t i m u l a t i o n and get the f r a c t u r e s t i m u l a t i o n i n the 

p a r t i c u l a r zone t h a t we f e e l needs t o be opened up. 

Going back i n an o l d wellbore t h a t was completed 

back i n the 1940s and 1950s, cement i s a qu e s t i o n . We have 

t o f r a c down a work s t r i n g , go down 3-1/2-inch t u b i n g , i n 

order t o s t i m u l a t e the w e l l s versus being able t o f r a c down 

new casing. And t h e r e f o r e your t r e a t i n g pressures are 

g r e a t l y reduced, and i t enhances the p a r t i c u l a r s t i m u l a t i o n 

t h a t you can get out of a p a r t i c u l a r j o b . 

So from t h a t standpoint we f e e l i t ' s worth the 
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business r i s k t o spend those a d d i t i o n a l d o l l a r s t o d r i l l a 

new wel l b o r e t o e f f e c t i v e l y be able t o open up those 

p a r t i c u l a r zones t h a t are i n question. 

That's p a r t of the reason we f e e l we've had the 

success i n our program t o date, i s t h a t we have been very 

successful i n i d e n t i f y i n g those zones, being very s e l e c t i v e 

i n only u t i l i z i n g 20 t o 25 p e r f o r a t i o n s i n a given w e l l b o r e 

and be able t o e f f e c t i v e l y open up t h i s bypassed gas. 

Instea d of using the approach j u s t t o come i n t h e r e and put 

a massive f r a c or b i g treatment over the e n t i r e i n t e r v a l , 

we're being very s e l e c t i v e i n nature. Plus the f a c t w i t h a 

new w e l l we have the a b i l i t i e s w i t h mud logs, new logs, 

t h i n g s of t h a t nature, t o be able t o get the data t h a t we 

need t o i d e n t i f y where those p r o s p e c t i v e zones are. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Just f o r the re c o r d , t h e r e was 

an e-mail on my machine t h a t they were t e s t i n g the f i r e 

system today. 

MR. CARR: We're probably not on f i r e . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And today i s February the 19th 

[ s i c ] . I don't t h i n k we need t o have a problem, because 

we're i n the same b u i l d i n g t h a t the IRS i s i n . They had 

two armed guards here Monday. 

Q. (By Examiner Stogner) Okay, I ' l l go back t o t h e 

w e l l i n Section 9, t h a t Case 12,623. There again — and I 

have spent many a time w r i t i n g an order gerrymandering 
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these p r o r a t i o n u n i t s . 

I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r s i t u a t i o n you had an e x i s t i n g 

w e l l i n t h e r e t h a t had some production. Why can't one w e l l 

be d r i l l e d somewhere i n between these a l i t t l e t o the west 

t h a t has the same r e s u l t s ? Why do you need two? 

A. Well, I t h i n k i t ' s our f e e l i n g , based on the work 

t h a t we've done, t h a t there are reserves t o be recovered on 

40-acre spacing. I mean, I t h i n k t h a t ' s the b e l i e f t h a t we 

have, based on the number of w e l l s t h a t have been completed 

i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area by the previous operator and us, 

t h a t t h e r e are 4 0-acre reserves t h a t w i l l not be recovered 

on any other density. 

Again, you can d r i l l a w e l l l i k e what you're 

d e s c r i b i n g , but I t h i n k you are, i n f a c t , going t o leave 

reserves behind by not d r i l l i n g the proposed l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. I s t h a t t r u e i n the whole Jalmat Pool? 

A. I can't speak f o r the whole pool because of — 

you know, the work t h a t we have done over the l a s t two 

years encompasses the acreage we have and maybe some of the 

o f f s e t acreage t o us. But t h e r e are operators out t h e r e i n 

the f i e l d t h a t are also going back i n and f r a c t u r i n g o l d 

w e l l s and recovering s i g n i f i c a n t reserves out of w e l l s t h a t 

are 30, 40 years o l d . 

Again, our preference i s , i f we have a new 

w e l l b o r e l i k e t h i s w i t h which t o work, I t h i n k i t ' s 
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b e n e f i c i a l i n ga t h e r i n g i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t helps us t o 

determine what some of the a d d i t i o n a l o p p o r t u n i t i e s are i n 

the f i e l d . And our study has been p r e t t y much j u s t i n the 

areas t h a t we operate and maybe some of the o f f s e t t i n g 

acreage t o us. That i s a s i g n i f i c a n t t r e n d . 

I can't speak t o some of the s t u f f t h a t may 

happen 10, 15 miles t o the south. We've seen d i f f e r e n c e s 

i n t he r e s e r v o i r on 40-acre l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. The great e q u a l i z e r was p r o r a t i o n i n g , but t h e r e 

again, I was wrong. Keep t h a t i n mind whenever the new 

r u l e s come out. I f Raptor and many of the other operators 

come i n , then I'm sure you're going t o have t h a t 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o put t h a t i n the r u l e s . Right now, we're 

c o n t r o l l i n g t he number of w e l l s i n a qua r t e r s e c t i o n 

because of not only my mistake but a l o t of o t h e r s . But 

I ' l l be the f i r s t t o admit, I made a mistake. 

What's your op i n i o n as commercial p r o d u c t i o n , 

what's the minimum r a t e t h a t a w e l l can produce and s t i l l 

m a i n t a i n pay out? 

A. We t h i n k t h a t you could have a w e l l t h a t could 

produce as l i t t l e 10 MCF a day w i t h c u r r e n t p r i c e s and 

s t i l l be economical, based on our t y p i c a l o p e r a t i n g 

expenses on a p e r - w e l l basis, t h a t approximately 10 MCF a 

day would be an economic l i m i t . 

Again, when you look a t the amount of gas t h a t 
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would need t o be produced t o pay back the c a p i t a l 

investment on one of these new d r i l l - a n d - e q u i p s , w i t h 

c u r r e n t p r i c e s i t j u s t takes a l i t t l e over 70 m i l l i o n cubic 

t o be able t o pay out t h a t i n i t i a l investment. And I t h i n k 

the numbers prove out t h a t the p o t e n t i a l r e c o v e r i e s are 

s i g n i f i c a n t l y above t h a t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I don't have any other 

questions of Mr. Lawrence. Do you have an y t h i n g f u r t h e r , 

Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Very b r i e f l y , Mr. Stogner. That 

concludes our p r e s e n t a t i o n . 

We w i l l c o r r e c t E x h i b i t 24, and we w i l l c o n f i r m 

t o you i n w r i t i n g the scale on a l l remaining e x h i b i t s . 

I d i d prepare proposed orders i n t h i s case. But 

w i t h your permission, since t h i s a t t o r n e y has a 

misstatement of the pool r u l e s i n these proposed orders, I 

would l i k e an o p p o r t u n i t y t o r e v i s e them. And I t h i n k they 

are of value i n t r y i n g t o look a t the case, because they 

have taken a t l e a s t every e x h i b i t and broken i t down by 

A p p l i c a t i o n , and they're not lengthy, and they p r o v i d e , I 

t h i n k , a road map t o anyone who's t r y i n g t o e v a l u a t i o n t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

So w i t h your permission, I ' d l i k e t o f i l e a l l of 

t h a t as soon as we're able t o c o r r e c t the e x h i b i t , and I 

w i l l d e l i v e r t h a t t o you a t t h a t time. 
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That concludes our p r e s e n t a t i o n i n t h i s case. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Carr, what's your o p i n i o n 

about h o l d i n g t h i s matter up u n t i l such time as the r u l e s 

-- the new -- the order -- I'm s o r r y , t he case t o consider 

new r u l e s i n the Jalmat? 

MR. CARR: Well, the problem we have w i t h t h a t 

i s , we have, you know, plans t o d r i l l and r i g s ready and 

a l l of t h a t , and the -- you know, there are so many players 

and issue when we look a t the change i n t h e Jalmat r u l e s . 

I mean, the net e f f e c t of p u t t i n g t h i s and other people's 

development programs on hold i s t h a t i t b a s i c a l l y shuts 

down the development of t h i s r e s e r v o i r f o r an i n d e f i n i t e 

p e r i o d of time. 

I want you t o know t h a t I t r u l y a ppreciate what a 

d i f f i c u l t s i t u a t i o n has evolved i n terms of how the Jalmat 

Pool i s t o be developed and how i t i s t o be r e g u l a t e d . 

T r a d i t i o n a l t o o l s are now suspect, and i t creates an 

e x t r a o r d i n a r i l y d i f f i c u l t problem f o r you as a r e g u l a t o r , 

f o r us as operators. 

We have plans t o go forward. We would l i k e t o do 

t h a t . We t h i n k we can show t h a t the w e l l s do produce new 

reserves t h a t are going t o be l e f t i n the ground i f they're 

not allowed t o be d r i l l e d , they are — And so t o t h a t 

e x t e n t t h e y ' r e necessary. C e r t a i n l y they can be — t h i s 

development can be economically done a t today's p r i c e s , or 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

83 

even as Mr. Lawrence showed e a r l i e r , a t p r i c e s l e s s than 

h a l f of what we have today. 

We've n o t i f i e d , we b e l i e v e , l i t e r a l l y everybody 

and t h e i r dog, and we've gone beyond what you might 

construe the n o t i c e area i n an attempt t o comply w i t h t h a t 

c o u r t order, again recognizing t h a t t h a t c o u r t order 

c e r t a i n l y does create issues and problems t h a t f a l l on both 

sides of t h i s hearing room. 

We would ask t h a t i f p o s s i b l e the A p p l i c a t i o n s be 

considered. We're going t o f i l e the proposed orders, and 

then a t t h a t p o i n t i t ' s w i t h i n your domain. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: For the record, I understand 

t h a t the case w i l l probably be continued f o r another month, 

because another number-one p r i o r i t y has been given the 

person t h a t ' s r e w r i t i n g the Jalmat r u l e s . I don't know 

when the Jalmat w i l l get a number-one p r i o r i t y . 

Okay. With t h a t , Mr. Carr, I w i l l h o l d the 

record open pending reissuance of E x h i b i t Number 24. And 

when do you t h i n k you may have t h a t rough d r a f t ? 

MR. CARR: I have the rough d r a f t s a c t u a l l y here. 

They c o r r e c t e d i n a matter of hours. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Why don't we do t h a t ? Let me 

see i f can I — I f you've got one, l e t ' s go ahead and 

submit i t . 

MR. CARR: A l l r i g h t , I've got one --
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EXAMINER STOGNER: I can work w i t h you on --

MR. CARR: I have one i n each case, but I would 

r e a l l y l i k e t o r e v i s e them, because I hate being i n the 

p u b l i c record not knowing the Jalmat Pool. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I can understand t h a t . Okay, 

and t h a t ' s easy t o know because t h i s i s -- the r u l e s f o r 

the Jalmat. I t ' s not impossible t o understand. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Stogner, I'm going t o give you 

copies of each of the orders. These are j u s t d r a f t s , and I 

would l i k e t o re v i s e them, and I ' l l s u b s t i t u t e them 

tomorrow. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, l e t ' s go o f f the record. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I f there's nothing f u r t h e r i n 

these t h r e e cases, then the record w i l l be held open 

pending E x h i b i t Number 24 and the rough d r a f t s — 

MR. CARR: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — and you should have them t o 

me tomorrow. 

With t h a t , t h i s hearing i s adjourned. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

2:15 p.m.) 
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